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( FUAT & T84 Tg 7294 . ' MISSION & OBJECTIVES OF THE rmw.-\.\'s]
l m 1. Vision
J T s sfadam g vl g gl g  To be a leading engineering and project
management consullancy organization
2 wem e
-~ 2. Mission
Q=N e !m_nﬂm. A S, TR T W) . Toereate and deliverintegrated techno-commercial
T FHAH HEF T 9w solution optimum in cost, quality and time to all
customers,
O A el va ufora wey § oaen e
i =R 1T Frerei P %"F_.l, - J To pursue relentlessly world class quality in
.-t RN engineering consultancy and project management
LR by imbibing best practices.
bR T W T 4 WEw @ aged g < To develop, upgrade and improve the
o . ol , f manufacturing process of Catalystand other
GRS ® R 9 I w ' products in line with the ever evolving need of
I TA HE R W | customers.
3. =vg 2. Objectives
i & 4 ; fraed < PROFITABILITY: To leverage the human
WO, ¢ : b : mtm 3&7 resources, technology and physical assets of the
st meﬂ F gEE A Y A T AfuE IH E company, in most effective and efficient manner,
THTE w wafs T TE AT %+ me FEm to generate an optimum return on investmeni,
e T U S with adequate safety and liguidity...
ghg : =T, T T W A s el o - GROWTH: To achieve reasonable, consistenl and
¥ oty . : diversified growth across fertilizer, oil & pas and
vl T Tl anfn, s v wE i other sectors in India and abroad.
AN
& DEVELOPING ORGANIZATIONAL

W 2w fawre o e 9 Feia 96
9ig, Wa A sdifes SEne # T UE s
7 warEm T e e fa W ' e
o' % ¥9 9 1EEE 0 6wl

UTET : WER W1 AATERT $ ATEY A 36
i daE F) oEen A w0

aora &% fafas @l & wp=r . s =eEm R
s | e Tafv= v we o g, FiitE, T,
st AT U7 S F g & T w5, U AW
Fmits wmfts % ®0 4 gER S0

CAPABILITIES: To create environmen! ancl
conditions in the orgamzation conducive for
developing and mainfaining its knowledge, human
and physical resources and make the company g
‘Learning Organization’,

O QUALITY: To ensure that quality of our products

and services fully mects the requirement of
customers.

JVALUE FOR ALL STAKEHOLDERS: To be

guided in all its actions by the consideration of crealing,
value for all its stakeholders, viz., shareholders,
employees, clients, business partners and society
to become a responsible Corporate Citizen,




/—‘ TuTE St h ,—' QUALITY POLICY .—\

@ 7 N2, | 31'1'*'! 3?11? @ &= We at PDIL ensure that Quality
Tl F VEE U6 WEE Hi

AEIFEAE H AF H @ T

of our products and services,
fully meets the requirements of

. customers,
e e &
@ Our products and services take
B TR SRI Ua HE | wieTnd, care of Functional, aesthetic,

dr=dyeral, aufw @ fafes
fafams smEvgsas 1 W
F T AfafewR ES weaw &
fau wHiafF wE wfers %
fem, sweavaa s Foml W
o favm o= fam s @)

statutory  and regulatory
requirements besides
environmental and safety
aspects with added
consideration for the welfare of

society.

@™ B9 HEAvEF AT Ha WH @ We are committed to continually
% fou FHadawey & w e improve the effectiveness of our
Tl W g5f 1 e A Quality Management System.
T % fom dvevas ¥

& W e K. C. KATTA
ape A [ Chairman & Managing Director

NS S N8 J
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PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED
iA GOVT. OF INDIA ENTERPRISE)

PDIL BHAWAN, A-14, Sector-1 POST BOX NGO, 125
NOIDA-201501 DISTT. CAUTAM RUDH NAGAR (U P INDIA
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Ref, Moo PDN/CS/AGM /33 Diated : 2nd June , 2011

[NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Third
Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
PROJECTS & DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED
will be held on 15th july, 2011 at 12.00 noon at
“PDIL BHAWAN", A-14, Sector-1, Noida-201301,
(Uttar Pradesh) to transact the following business :-

DRMNARY BLUSINESS

l. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Repaort,
the Audited Accounts of the Company for
the year ended 31st March, 2011 and the
Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To declare Dividend @ 22% of paid up capital
for the year 2010-11.

By Order of the Board
od. /-

(S. R. Sahoo)
Company Sccretary

To:
All Shareholders

Note :

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote is
entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and
vote instead of himself and Proxv need not
be a Member.
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=T, Gentlemen,

e Frewes st %1 334 wifs ol & wy
3| o+ 2011 & TET 7Y # ey dan-faam wed
g H

favira ufiomm
(v % H)
2000-11  2009-10
g 11120 8341
=g 7HiAS 5970
el T4 3452 2371
TRE 218 237
qatEly TaETEs (e IUn) & (13)
s @™ 3178 2121
FOUE 3g wAEuA D76 673
H1 & Iy S 7Y 2102 1448
% I s T 10921 9300

et w9 A 79 2010~ 11 ¥ WeEr ghy wfas w:
%1 7o) g svefer @ amw AR weEw fea T @

o figa ad @ A afife v 2121 = A g
H T 3198 wug @ wifth g e afsiha e
T, ¥R R 49.83 Wfawa H gfg =™ @

- FFi A frost ad § T 8341 FR I FEN AT 01,
20 T T FHifdar wRER Tfea fm 8178 wan
af & SN 33.32 wavia 1 afg 7 @ T

. FE A T T 92,01 FAZ H FAENE FHE
Hfafead fm #)

. fafi= &3 9 whan # fEu s & @a 9 =19
wt &

Your Directors have pleasure in
presenting the 33** Annual Report of the
Company together with Audited Accounts for the
year ended 31* March, 2011.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

[¥ in Lakhs]

2010-11  2009-10

Income 111210 8341
Expenditure 7668 5970
Gross Profit 3452 2371
Depreciation 218 237
Prior Period Adjustment (Net Credit)  (5h) (13)
Net Profit Y78 2121
Provision tor Taxation 1076 673
Net profil after tax 2102 1448

Net worth at close of the year 10921 9300

Your Company has achieved robust growth
in the year 2010-11. Some of the achievements are

summarized below:-

. A record net profit of ¥ 31.78 crores was
earned compared to ¥ 21.21 crores during
the previous year thus registering a growth
of 49.83%.

. The company has achieved a record hurnover
of ¥ 111.20 crores as against ¥ 83.41crores in
the previous year, thus registering a growth
of 3332 *¢ during the year.

. The company has secured a record business
of around ¥ 92.01 crores.

. The company's quest for Business from
diversified sectors has yielded result.




Handing over cheque for dividend to Dr. S. Behuria, Secretary, (Fert.) by Shri K.C.Katta, CMD PDIL.
Shri Satish Chandra, J.S. (A&M) Shri. S.C. Gupta, J.S. (F&P), Shri A.K. Prashar, Eco. Adv.,
Shri. M.P. Johnson, DDG - Deptt. of Fertilizer and Shri. S.R. Sahoo, Co. Secy. PDIL are also seen.
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Ao 29T &1 g9 @A wU UH=E 8 W
T 29! ®A 3 Wae YAt % 22 ufawm & Fuar ¥
180 ,56,700/- HUE F VY GTH AIFER B T B
T W | W NN WO F AHEA & an
fem s ad 2000411 % fom st ud wETw ST
F FU HE AW T 4.44 FAZ B ¥ 200 HUT F
ufe wwAl (anfaa fife 9 e = Fa) e,
1975 & g H " sRiem fifa e wosnie

1 HI

AYEITET FTa SaEn feares
=Rl HOA H oA 200010 F AU I
WU T S 4§ TEn T g TEe fAwea & A

2010-1Y F fAu & 'sow' & w9 o dvitag fen @m =

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND

Your Directors are pleased to recommend
a dividend of 22 on the paid up capital of the
company amounting to ¥ 3.80,56,700/- to Govt of
India. The dividend shall be paid after shareholders
approval. The total outgo on account of dividend
and dividend tax for the year 2010-2011 will be
¥ 4.44 crores. An amount of ¥ 2.10 crores will be
transferred to general reserve account in
compliance with the Companies (Transfer of Profit

to Reserves) Rules, 1975.

MOU PERFORMANCE

Your company has got “Excellent” MOU
rating for the yvear 2009-10. Its performance is also

likelv to be rated as "Excellent” for the vear 20101 1
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MOU Excellence Award for the year 2008-09 in "Consultancy Sector” recieved by
Sh. K.C. Katta, CMD, PDIL from Hon'ble Prime Minister Dr. Manmohan Singh on 15.12.2010

TwE &) A FE T T 2006-07 H THEE 79 W@
TEIER A & 99H @ & AR A "I § w9 0 g
fgy w9 o T B

weitendA a9 # A0 S wO e w
3 1 399 favyes #dees & 5o a3d 200800 % fau
wiATea WHEIM F IEFEd [EERE S A R
fei 15.12.2010 ® ¥MFA = 9T WEEEA 3L T
fag 7o 5@ T A

TE FyA fam A3 oA ] 2 oW wt o
whiY % g il - oof-11 % fag e @ /) aufy,
T T e A PRl % fafa s gvem
% woA e = e # i PRy #1 fafa w
3w faum go wiea w0 | faan f@a @ = &

Your company takes pride in being rated “Excellent’

since the first year of its signing MOU in 2006-07.

During the vear under review your
Company won prestigious MOU Excellence Award
for the year 2008-09 for top performing CPSE
the Consultancy Sector. This award was conferred
by Hon'ble Prime Minister of India Dr. Manmohan
Singh on 15.12.2010.

The company has become eligible for Mini
Ratna- Category-1I status under DPE scheme of Mini
Ratna since last 3 years. However, as per the DPE
scheme, the same can be conterred after
appointment of Independent Directors. The
appointment of Independent Directors is under

active consideration of Department of Fertilizers.
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SECTORWISI

DPFERATIONS:

A. ENGINEERING AND CONSULTANCOCY
IMVISION

Ferfilizer Projects

DETAILS OF COMPANY'S

PDIL has played a pivotal role in the
development of Fertilizer industries in India. PDIL is
maintaining its core strength in this sector and s
ready to take up the new challenges in executing the
Brown field, Green field, Revamp and Expansion
Projects of many  fertilizer units in the country.

During the year under review PDIL secured an
order for Project Management Consultancy (PMC)
services for Feedstock Changeover Project of M/s
National Fertilizers Lid, Noida for their three plants
located at Panipat, Bathinda & Nangal. Italso secured
order for providing Engineering Consultancy Services
for Offsites & Utlites for 2200 MTPD Ammonia &
3850 MTPD Urea plants under Fertilizer Expansion
Project at Babrala, UP for M /s Tata Chemicals Ltd.

The Company was also successful in gethng
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A view of Ammonia Plant Feedstock change over project, NFL, Nangal |

e dEed we G ofesn wfeeed ur @fteen
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H UF w mif m s
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FENEH, vEa & s e
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w1 HoeA w1 w0 © A
® AR @l e A oefaie
#1 s e, FE & o
F i N GH W YE T F
FHiA 3 T R

View of Ammonia plant execution site
of Matix Fertilizer,

ordurs for Detalled Engineering Consultancy services
for Urea Revamp Project at Thal for M /s Rashtriya
Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd and Engineering
Consultancy services for Urea Handling and Bagging
system at Panagarh, West Bengal
Bl for M /s Matix Fertilizers &

| Chemicals Ltd.

1 * During the year the company is

executing the job  of Detailed
Engineering consultancy job for
Ammonia Plant of Matix Fertilizers,
Thal Ammonia Revamp project of
RCF, Capacity Enhancement
Projects of NFL, Vijaipur, Energy
Saving project Ammonia-l of NFL
Vijaipur and PMC Services for
| Ammonia Syn Gas Generation
| plant of GNFC, Bharuch, etc. The
| Company is executing PMC job
for Ammonia Urea Complex at
| Algeria whichis progressing well
i} as per schedule. Further the
revamp of existing Ammonia /
Urea plant of KRIBHCO is also fast
# approaching for commissioning.
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REFINERY, OIL & GASAND OTHER SECTORS

PDIL has established its credentials in the
Oil and Gas sector and has shown its presence by
securing jobs from almost all the prestigious public
sector undertakings in the Qil and Gas sector. It
secured the job of Project Management Consultancy
(PMC) services for ONGC-URAN U /G LPC pipeline
of M/s Bharat Petroleum Corporation Ltd., Mumbai

It also secured the job of Engineering,
Procurement & Construction Management (EPCM)
for installation of Trim Cooler in LPG Vapour line af
GPU, Gandhar for M/s
GAIL India Ltd. Apart from
this, PDIL also secured order
for Engineering Consultancy
services for LPG plants of M &
Hindustan Petroleum
Corporation Ltd, Mumbai.

It is successfully
providing the PMC services
for a Hydrogen plant of
Chennai Petroleum Corp
Ltd., Manali and for H2-
N2 plant at Paradeep
| Refinery of IOCL on BOO
| basis. The jobs of Hydrogen
-'" Generation plant of 10C]

=== Barauni and 60 TPFD
Sulphur Recovery Unit-I'V of [OCL Mathura Refinery
are progressing well. With the execution of these jobs
PDIL has established its credentials for taking up
more jobs in the Oil & Cas sector.

INSPECTION &ND'I

Yourcompany has established its credentials
for Third Party Inspection (TPI) and Non
Destructive Testing (NDT) Services, Statutory
inspection, testing and certification of Horton
Spheres, Mounded 1.PG Bullets. Inspection and
recommissioning of Ammonia Storage Tanks etc.
continued to be a specialized activity of PDIL.
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On the basis of credential and satisfactory
past performance, Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited
(BHEL), extended the TPl Rate Contract. Jobs are
being carried out to the full satisfaction of BHEL and
their clients NTPC, PGCIL and DVC.

During the year, your company also
successful in securing a major TPI order in the
diversified field of steel sector. M/s Rashtriya Ispal
Nigam Limited (RINL) / Visakhapatnam Steel Plant
(VSP), Visakhapatnam, awarded a prestigious
contract for pre-dispatch inspection of materials.

Various Oil and Gas companies such as
GAIL, CPCL, 10CL, BPCI, HPCL continued to
repose confidence in PDIL by awarding inspection
and NDT jobs to PDIL. IOCL continued to be a
major TPI client. Most of the orders for Project
Management Consultancy (PMC) for Terminal
Automation System (at Meerut, Haldwani,
Allahabad, Kanpur, Mugalsarai, Tikrikalan, Patna,
Kandla, Rajkot, Hazira, Sangrur, Bhatinda,
Devangundi, Bijapur, Cochin, Jhansi, Dimapur,
Lumding, Jodhpur, Bharatpur, Panipat etc.) have
been awarded to PDIL. IOCL also entrusted PDIL
with [nspection Services for CCTV Surveillance
System at many LPG Bottling Plants, Terminals &
Depots at [hansi, Kanpur, Allahabad, Lucknow,
Devangundi, Mangalore, Bijapur, Gulbarga.

During the year HPCL also awarded project
management consultancy and supervision services
for Terminal Automation System at Budge Budge.

10CL also awarded orders for electrical
safety audit of their LPG Bottling Plants, Oil
Terminals and Oil Depots and Retail Qutlets.
During the year PDIL carried out Inspection of
Petroleum Horizontal Storage Tanks for IOCL.

PDIL also carried out inspection of civil
works, electrical works and technical audit of 220
KV & 440 KV Sub Stations and Transmission Lines
of Delhi Transco Limited in NCR.
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PDIL carried out Third Party Inspection jobs
for various State Government organizations like
PHED Rajasthan & West Bengal, Uttar Pradesh Jal
Nigam, Haryana PWD, U.P. State Agro Industrial
Corporation Limited etc.

I'DIL secured various NDT jobs from HPCL,
IOCL , BPCL, NFL - "anipat & Bhatinda Units and
IFFCO Paradeep which includes statutory testing
of LPG Horton Spheres, Bullets, Ammonia Storage
Tanks and Health Assessment of Reformer Catalyst
Tube by Automatic Ultrasonic Scanning (AUS).

[ECHNO-ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY
DETAILED PROJECT REPORT

One of the major activities of PDIL continued
to be preparation of Techno— Economic Feasibility /
Detailed Project Report. During the year PDIL has
secured number of jobs in this area. Some of them
are as follows -

. Preparation of DFR for Integrated Coal Based
Fertilizer Complex at Talcher comprising of
Coal CGasification, Ammonia, Urea, Nitric
Acid, Ammonium Nitrate & SNG plants
alongwith necessary offsites & Utilities for
RCF, Mumbai

e  Detailed Feasibility Study for offsite & utilities
of Namrup-1l and Namrup-III plants for
BVFCL, Namrup

¢  Detailed Feasibility Study for Urea plants at
Namrup-Il and Namrup-I1l for BVFCL,
Namrup

*  Detailed Feasibility study for shifting of
required equipments of plant-13 to CBR at
Manali Refinery for CPCL, Manali

*  Detailed Project Reports including technology
evaluation for development of GS5FC’s
integrated complex consisting of Ammonia,
Urea caprolactam & Melamine production at
Dahej, Gujarat for GSFC, Vadodara
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Pre-Feasibility Report for Phosphatic fertilizer
complex in Andhra Pradesh, India for M/s
Industies Chimiques du Senegal

Pre-Feasibility Study for coal based Ammaonia,
Urea complex including technology evaluation
for coal gasification for MEC, Indonesia

Preparation of Detailed Feasibility Report for
2 Geographical Areas for City Gas Distribution
Project for MNGL, Pune

Pre-Feasibility Study Reporl for Proposed Urea
manufacturing unit in Andhra Pradesh forM/s
Nuziveedu Seeds Pvt Ltd, Hyderabad

Consultancy for pre-feasibility report for
setting up 1.15 MT capacity fertilizer plant at
FCl, Sindri location for SAIL, New Delhi

ASSIGNMENTS ABROAD

PDIL is striving hard to make a breakthrough
In securing assignments
from abroad. Presently
PDIL is providing PMC
Services for Algeria Oman
Fertilizer Project at Arzew,
Algenia for AOA, Algeria.

During the current
year, PDIL secured the
jobs of preparation of Pre-
Feasibility Reports (PFRs)
for Coal based Ammonia
plant for M/s MEC,
Indonesia and for

w fo smerdm-w A view of work in prn of Algeria Oman Phesp;hatic ﬁj:ti:]zer
(frewaT) w1 T4 T w5 Fertilizer Project, Arzew, Algeria EOMPIES 1 ARG
1y fEm #) Pradesh for M/s Industies

Clumuques du Senegal.
ST W TECHNICAL AUDIT
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Department of Fertilizers (DoF) continued

to engage PDIL for Techno-commercial Audit of
SSP Plants located throughout India. The Audits
were undertaken and the reports with TAC
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observation and comments have already been
submitted to DoF.

INFRASTRUCTURE SECTOR

Company has established its credenhals in
Infrastructure Development Sector also. [tis providing
Project Management Consultancy Services and
Review Consultancy job for Marmied Accommodation
Project at various locations for Ministry of Defense.

ENGINEERING BUSINESS

Your company has executed engineering
jobs worth ¥ 82.49 Crores during the year as
compared to ¥34.52 Crores in previous year, an
increase of 51.30 .

RENOVATION OI
CONDITIONING
BHAWAN, NOIDA

AIR
PDII

CENTRAI
PLANT AT

Your company has taken steps towards
renovation of Central Air Conditioning plant at
PDIL. Bhawan building at Noida to save energy since
the present compressor is consuming high energy
due to aging. During the year the new 200Tr Screw
Type Chiller in combination with the existing 120
Tr Screw unit has been successtully installed.

B CATALYSTDIVISION

For Fertilizer Industry, PDIL continued to
produce catalysts such as FHT CO Conversion Shift
Catalyst, LT COConversion Shift Catalyst, LT Guard
Catalyst, Methanation/ Super- Methanation and
Vanadium Pentoxide Catalyst. Apart from Fertilizer
Industry, PDIL have also produced catalyst to meet
requirement of Oil Refineries and Steel Industries.

During the current financial year, PDIL
exccuted prestigious orders for supply of LT CO
Conversion and LT Guard Catalyst to KRIBHCO-
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A view of Ammonia & Urea Plant revamp, KRIBHCO, Hazira.
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Hazira, NFCL, Kakinada and Nickel based
Methanathon Catalyst to NFCL- Kakinada and
Super Methanation catalyst to M/s Johnson &
Maithey- Kanpur, HT Shitt Catalyst to KRIBHCO-
Hazira and NFCL- Kakinada, Vanadium Pentoxide
Catalyst to SAIL- Rourkela, SAIL- Bhilai, Krishna
Industies — Chennai and Keerthi Pvt. Ltd.- Bangalore

e sale of catalyst during the year was
¥ 1179 crorey as compared o ¥ 237 crores in the

previous year.
Ré&D ACTIVITIES

Work on a number of R&D projects, mostly
sponsored by DoF hasstarted. Work on development
of process for recovery of raw malterial from spent
high temperature shift conversion catalyst for use as
raw material for preparation of fresh catalyst is to
be completed by June, 2011. The R&D work has
been successful.
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*  DoF sponsored R&D projects -
() Treatment of spent LT Shift Conversion
Catalyst for conversion to fresh LT Shift

Conversion Catalyst.

(1) Developmentof new Chlorine Guard Catalyst

used upstream of LT Shift Conversion Catalyst.

»  Efforts are underway to secure sponsorship for
Conversion of spent nickel catalyst (secondary
reformation, primary reformation & methanation
catalyst) to fresh nickel-based catalysts.

*  Tor future R&D work, your company is
preparing proposals for the following R&D
projects

Removal of NO, from flue gases from reformer fumace

Removal of NO, & Sox from flue gases generated in
power plant boilers.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

IPDIL is in advanced stage of discussions with
Shreeram EPC Ltd, Chennai, for providing EPCM
Services for their Coal gasification based Ammonia
Plant at Paradeep. A number of green field / brown
field Fertilizer projects viz. RCF's Ammonia/Urea
Fertilizer project at Thal, TCL's Ammonia/Urea
project at Babrala, CFCL’s Ammonia/Urea projuct at
Gadepan, [FFCO's Ammonia / Urea Fertilizer project
at Kalol, Indo Gulf's Ammonia / Urea project at
Jagdishpur, KRIBHCO's Ammonia/ Urea project at
Hazira, etc. are expected to come up very shortly. In
addition to above, few projects pertaining to revamp/
de-bottlenecking of existing Fertilizer Plants like MF1.'s
Fertilizer Plant at Chennai are also expected to
materialize. Govt. of India has already cleared the
revival of closed Fertilizer Units of FCl and HFCL by
installation of new generation Ammonia and Urea
plants. PDIL is looking forward to rendering
engineering consultancy services for all these projects.
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PDIL has successfully established its
credentials in undertaking engineering consultancy
services for projects in other sectors viz. Oil & Gas,
Refinery, Infrastructure, etc. We are expecting to
further add to our list of credentials by way of
securing assignments for City Gas distribution
projects, rendering engineering,/ PMC services for
various Refinery units, tankages. Pipelines, etc. We
are also eyeing assignments pertaining to
preparation of specialized Reports like Feasibility
Report/Risk Analysis/ FIA/ HAZOP, etc. in
Fertilizer/ Power/ Oil & Gas/ Refinery sectors.

PDIL has also made tie-ups/ strategic
alliance with reputed Organizations like SIMPLEX,
BDS Projects India Pvt Ltd, Kazstroy Services
Infrastructure India Pvt Ltd. and ENERECO of [taly
for securing jobs in fertilizer/ infrastructure/ Cross-
country pipeline/ Petrochemicals sectors.

A number of projects for manufacture of
Ammonia/ Urea are expected to come up in the
near future like RCF, Indo Gulf, [IFFCO, CFCL, TCL,
NFCL, ZIL etc. It is observed that a number of
Companies who are coming up are exploring Lump
Sum Turn Key (LSTK) mode of execution of these
projects. This is an area where PDIL is facing serious
challenges Due to huge investmentinvolved, PDIL
alone is not wn a position to bid for these projects on
LSTK basis. To overcome this challenge, PDIL has
entered/ planning to enter into strategic alliance/
MOU with competent LSTK bidders. PDIL is also
in the process of strengthening manpower for
undertaking small projects on LSTK mode.

Efforts are being made for securing more
jobs/ business from foreign clients.
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A view of Hydrogen Generation Unit, Chennal Petroleum Corporation Limited, Chennai
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OVERALL BUSINESS

The Total business secured during the linancial
year is% 9201 crores (Previous year ¥ 114 crores)

ITINITIATIVES

With a view to promote process automiation
and also keeping pace with the rapid advancement
in Information Technology, your company has made
substantial investment in the year under review in
purchase of hardware/ software along with up-
gradation of existing facilitics.

PDIL has already moved ahead by
integrating its business processes and also
substantially reducing hard copy movement of
papers thus contributing towards eco friendly
environment in the organization

Your company has made an ambitious plan
for furthering its IT initiatives by implementing
Documentum as a Document Management System
(DMS) and necessary actions are being taken to start
implementing DMS in the current financial year.
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The company is also making serious efforts
for installation of a Disaster Recovery Site at its
Baroda Office. This will give PDIL a new strength
in mitigating risk against any mishap and disaster.

Needless to mention, PDIL stands committed
to provide latest software to the core users and
strengthen the engineering team to handle business
challenges efficiently.

ERP PROJECT

PDIL has retained M /s HC_L Technologies
Limited as a System Integrator for implementation
of SAP ERP at all locations of PDIL. PDIL has made
record achievement by making SAP go live as per
schedule on February 08,2011. Many processes have
already been integrated and roll out is under
progress, It is expected that ERP will get stabilized
in current year. All information is being migrated to
central database repository. Leveraging of
technology for standardization of process and
procedures will result in improved transparency.

Puja ceremony of ERP Go Live by Shri K.C. Katta, CMD in presence of
Shri R.G. Rajan CMD, RCF and other senior officers on the occasion.
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QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

PDIL has successfully implemented the
Quality Management System (QMS) meeting the
requirement of [SO 9001:2008 Standard. The
implemented System covers Engineering and
Inspection Services of all PDIL Offices and
Manufacturing of Catalysts at Sindri. The QMS has
been assessed and approved by Indian Register of
Quality System in the year 2009 and the certifving
agency after duly conducting surveillance audit in
2010 has renewed the validity of accredition.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Your company believes that Human
Resources are the main critical assets for any
company especially for a consultancy organization
which has “knowledge” as the major asset. With a
view to preserve the knowledge acquired by
individuals and the company over the last many
years of its existence, your company encourages
sharing of knowledge between experienced
manpower and younger groups.

During the vear under review, companv has
also taken steps to strengthen its manpower base &
has added 34 personnel mainly Management
Trainees at induction level and other senior & middle
levels.

Your company has identified training as an
integral tool for skill development of the officers &
employees of the company. As part of the ERP
implementation extensive in-house training was
imparted to employees at all locations across all
levels. Training wasalso arranged by inviting well
known professionals from leading Management
Academy & Business centers, In addition to in-
house training, employees were nominated for
attending Training/ workshop and seminar.
Company also sponsored candidate for
international seminar,

During the year company enjoyed
harmonious relations & there were no loss of
mandays on account of stoppage of work due to
Industrial Relation issues.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

PDIL has been pursuing CSR activities as
per policy duly approved by the Board as well as
directives issued by Govt. of India from time to
time. As per the Govt. Guidelines on CSR
activities, the CSR fund has also been created. The
objective of CSR policy is to alleviate the social
imbalances and helping the community in which
it operates. Accordingly, PDIL Board has
approved the CSR policy on the basis of guidelines
issucd by DPE. During the year 2010-11, an
amount of ¥ 13.78 lakhs has been spent on CSR
activities towards education of slum children,
Animal Hospital, Orphanages etc & contribute to
NCSR Hub thru’ Tata Institute of Soctal Science.

ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENT OF
VIGILANCEDEPTT.

The Company considers the Vigilance to be an
integral part of the management function. The Chief
Vigilance Officer posted at Corporate Office, Noida,
provides direction, guidance and supervision in the
vigilance efforts of the company. Vigilance Officers have
been posted at Noida Head Office and Baroda office.

The Company has adopted Proactive and
Preventive Vigilance as the main theme. The stress
is on transparency and accountability in the
working of the company Vigilance Notice Boards
have been installed in all the offices, displaying the
address and telephone numbers of the Chairman &
Managing Director, Chief Vigilance Officer, Central
Vigilance Commissioner and 5P, CBI Local Branch,
who can be approached for complaints of
corruption. A complain box has been kept at an
easily accessibly place to be used by employees for
complain without hesitation.

‘Agreed list of suspected Officers’ and ‘List
of Officers of Doubtful Integrity” have been prepared
and a close watch is kept on the listed officers,
System of rotation of employees posted in sensitive
posts for more than three years is being followed.
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Scrutiny and analysis of Annual Property Return
folders were carried out for one fifth officer’s
strength. Surprise and regular inspections (101 nos.)
were carried out during the financial year 2010-11.
Certain procedural lapses were observed and these
were rectified by advising the concerned officials/
departments. Certain improvements in the systems
were also suggested for implementation so that
better transparency in the system could be achieved.

Suggestions was given for reformation of
recruitment system to maintain transparency,
enforcement of terms and conditions of labour act
by ¢nsuring timely payment to contract labours,
auditing ot manpower, monitoring of engagement
of consultants keeping in light of requirement of job
vis a vis their utility, Details of work order awarded
and tendering process adopted are also posted on
website Lo maintain transparency.

"Vigilance Awareness Week” was observed
from 25" October to 5" November, 2010, with active
participation of the employees at various levels,

- — —

A view of Vigilance Awareness week with active participation of employees
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Flag hosting un-‘ihn occasion of
Republic Day by Sh. K.C. Katta, CMD

d information
4 company and can redress the
¥

PUBLIC RELATIONS
PDIL recognizes that
the etforts of each and every
member of the PDIL family is
essential for development of
the company. Recognizing
the need for harmony among,
employees and their

. involvement, PDIL celebrated

its Annual Sports Day on
13.2.2011. Employees along
with their family members
assembled together to
celebrate the occasion. Sports
& Cultural activities were
organized. Right to
mformahon system is in place

{ in the organization. Citizen

Charter is in place in PDIL
where general public can have
about the

il grievances

A view of Annual Sports day of PDIL celebrated on 13.2.2011

with active participation of family members of employees.
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LAMNL]

OFFICIAL
AGE POLICT

Your Company continued its intensive
efforts to propagate and implement various
provisions of Official Language Policy of the
Government of India. For promoting the use of
Hindj, in all the Departments, Hindi software has
been loaded to facilitate Hind1 typing. Every day a
Hindi Suvichar and a translation of Hindi word are
being e-mailed to all the employees on their
computers. Many interesting programmos like
Antakshari, Extempore speech Competition and
Hindi quizzes are organized regularly. Hindi
Pakhwara” was organized during 14" September
2010 to 30™ September 2010 . First sub commultec
of the Committee of Parliament on Official
Language inspected Chennai office on 31.12.2010.

Review of Hindi Implementation of Noida office by
Parliamentary sub Committee on Official Language
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Welcome of Sh. Rajendra Aggarwal

Convenor of P

sub committee on
Official language at PDIL Chennai by Shri K.C. Katta, CMD, PDIL
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FUA § - T OHER & Ry & aqEn
srgfaa wifa T enfasfaa & sdafal & fou aifem
i WA w1 § SdeiE w1 fEEm 30,0800 e
PCard I8

{ Sroft [ weqifer| e wnfa| @ ota | o foa
&3 430 50 21 72

' a 3 4 2
n 1| 0 &

i S S w |- |
| 492 63 21 | 80 |

9w FWNA & RE W wHEE H O
sAfufam &) wiw 217 (2)6(F) % =7 Fuifm ofn 8
wivw wfigfrs 6 wra g0 &

FACILITIES TO SC/ST

1s as follows:-

(8]

EMPLOYEES

In line with Government Guidelines issued

from time to time, your company continues to extend
required number of facilities to SC/5T/OBC
employees. The details of employees as on 31.03.11

IPLOYI | AS ON I
FOULARINCLI \GEMENT TRAINLES)
Category | Total MIP 5C ST | OBC
A 430 50 21 72
B 31 4 2
C 31 6
D Nil Nil Nil Nil
| Total 492 h3 21 80

None of the employees of your company
recelved remuneration in excess of reportable amount
as laid down under section 217(2)(A) of the

Companies Act
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1)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPFTION FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As the Company operations do not involve
any manufacturing or processing activities, the
particulars as per the Companies (Disclosure of
Parniculars in the Report of the Board of Directors)
Rules, 1988 regarding conservation of energy and
technology absorption, are not applicable, The
particulars regarding expenditure and earnings in
foreign exchange are given in item no. 20 of the notes
to the Accounts.

CORPORATEGOVERNANCE

Your company has been continuously
making efforts towards raising standards of
Corporate Governance. PDIL is pursuing with
Department of Fertilizers for appointment of three
Independent Directors to comply with the norms
for Corporate Governance as well as qualify for
Mini Ratna -1l Status. PDIL is also complying with
other legal statutory requirements. A Report on
Corporate Governance is annexed at Annexure-[.

STATUTORY ALDITORS

M/s Doogar & Associates. Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi were reappointed Auditor
of your Company for the financial year 2010-2017
by the C&AG of India.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT O1F
BOARDOF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to section 217(2AA) of Companies
Act 1958, your Directors hereby cunfirm that:-

THI

] In preparing the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed alongwith proper explanation
relating to material departures;

1) The accounting policies based on generally

accepted accounting principles have been

adopted and applied consistently and
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judgments and estimates made that are

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true

and fair view of the state of affairs of the

company at the end of the financial year and

of the profit or loss of the company for the year.
1) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities; and
v) The annual accounts have been prepared
on a going concern basis.
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received from Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers,
other Ministries, indian Embassies, State
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of MOU Task force and thank all of them for
reposing faith in the company.
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their gratitude to esteemed clients from both the
public and private sector and also the foreign clients
who have provided support and encouragement by
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and contribution of the employees of PDILand their
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company.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(K.C. Katta)
Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure- |
REPORT ON CORPORATECOVERNANCE

Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The philosophy of the Company in relation 1o
Corporate Governance is to ensure lransparency,
disclosures and reporting that conforms fully with
laws, regulations, guidelines and to promote ethical
conduct throughout the arganization with the primary
objective of enhancing shareholders value. The
company is committed to conforming to the highest
standards of Corporate Governance in the country

Board of Directors

Composition of Board : The Board of PDIL
comprises four Directors out of which two are
functional Directors including the Chairman &
Managing Director and two non-executive Directors
who are nominees of the Administrative Ministry,
Dept. of Fertilizer, and Government of India.

During the financial year 2010-11, the
tollowing Directors were on the Board of PDIL:

Executive Directors :

Sh. R. G. Rajan  Chairman & Managing Direclor
(up to 2-11-10)
Chairman & Managing Director
(w.el 3-11-10)

Director (Finance)

Sh. K.C Katta

Sh. K. C. Katta

MNon-Executive Directors ;
Sh. A. K. Parashar Economic Advisor, DOF

Sh. B.N. Tiwari  Director (E&S), DOF
(up to 09-07-10)

Dy Director General, DOF
( from _ﬂgquvmj

Sh. M. P. Johnson

Administrative Ministry has taken up the
matter regarding appointment of independent
Directors.
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an 2000-11 % T HEW W T F A, W Number of Board meeting / Altendance of each
Wi fEw A smitae dfag witw s i e Directorat Board Meeting and the last AGM held
frrorE 31 Tuisfy durinp. the year 2000-1
7w #1 foviw | 35w ww | Iufem ﬁm' " Date of 1 Place of Directors
Meeting Meeting, present
il Ve ! 24" May 2010 Noid 4
9 T4, 2000 i 3 o8 Y e
i freeit 9% June 2010 Noida 3
20 A, W10 2 209 August 2010 Delhi 4
B ARE 2010 | el 4 8" October 2010 Noida 4
10w, 2000 | = 3 10" February 2011 | Noida 3
30 W4, 2011 AT 3 30" March 2011 ! Noida 3
w. | FEve Hge & Az | 20 A, Q010 | fEEte 0000 @ frafa
. | @ A @ @, | snmitaa sife W WTEW 5wt
fornt 3oftga @ | s o aufiafa | 4 s Feoes o2 S3 dem
Sk | Name of No. of Board | Attendance al last No. of other
No.| Directors Meeting AGM held on Directorship in other
attended 20 August 2010 | Co. as on 31.03.2011
1 | % smsi. 793 Sh. R G Rajan* 4 ® Yes —
2 |9+ w2 Sho K C Katta b # Yes T
3 | & um EPE Sho A K. Parashar 6 & No 14
4 |5t A Al Sho B N Tiwari®™ 1 & No -
5 | & mR SFEA Sho M. P johnson*** 4 1 =€l No w4 Nil
Y- T W' * Director up to 2-11-2010.
** 9-7-2010 W fEwEE| ** Director up to 09-07-2010.
ER 9-7-2010 a ﬁ"a“ﬂiﬁ + ¥y ] ﬁﬁ?ﬁl W _qPPumted as Director wee 09-07-2010.
@ figom whEmm S faf @ Hindustan Fertilizer Corp. Ltd.
#  upritsw st faom wd foae gy fafulee # FCI Aravali Gypsiim & Minerals India Ltd

FrEn wien afufn @ TER fEw oW W5

urfrarioss vt
wisfes wfife & neq fem W ow #

Audit Committes:

Audit vommittee is being constituted.

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration committee is being constiuted.
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Share holdersiinvestors Grievance Commilive

Projects & Development India Limited is a
Government Company and the entire share capital
is held by President of India and his nominees.
Hence, no such commiltee is required to be constituted.

arftes 3m3 391 Annual General Meeting
E Eg] fomrer 3l wwa T g favm g
=, uifta feear mar £
SL Year Location Date & Time Whether any Special
No. resolution passed
I 2007-08 | FWET Noida | 05092008 at 1100 AM | 5 (59 & s=0% & == 84 (1)
% HeA F )
Yes  (for amendment in clause 8403)
of articles of assaciabion)
2 2008-09 | U Noida | 31-8-2000 at 1LO0AM | 78 No
3 2009-10 | A2 Noida | 20-08-2010 at 11.00 AM | 58 No
UeRE a7 Disclosures

i % TE WU w0 8 w9 w8 A
uiaEs 74 W T @ wE wEn werEEn ) fEiaEd
[ dEe & AT R

YH FER B e FEoaeE W S g0
s = T AE O W T T i Erem
o ApgEES ¢ AR T AR g W e e g
arit feed ot Feonfadm @ o fell it o 0 S
Zr sFeer S e wE o R e o= #
HyauT & WET

affs fadm s w1 & &0 F98E
www.pdilin.com T =@ G &

SI9E] SR AR & A wiiE € =i AW w
=i L fom w21 & & I R R S rEeEs
i weag 6w £

The related party transaction that may have
potential conflict with interest of the Company at
large has been duly informed to the Board during
the year

There have been no instances of non
compliance by Company to any matter related o
capital market since 'DIL is a unlisted Company
and any matter related to any guidelines issued by
Government during the last three years.

Means of communication

Annual Financial performance are posted in
the Company’s website www.pdilin.com

General shareholders information

The entire paid up share capital of the
company is held in the name of president of India and
his nominees. AGM details are furnished above. The
Company shares are not listed in any stock exchange
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Frome = s g PERFORMANCE AT A GLANCE
famim fafyem Financial Highlights :- ¥ %7z # 7in Crores

feerr Particulars 20110-1 1 | 2009-10| 2008-09 [2007-08 | 2006-07 |2005-06 | 2004-05 |2003-04
7 fwmees wg | NetSales/Operating Income | 10263 | 74.62 | 60.61| 46.26) 3999) 39.71| 398a| 44.93
W AW Other Income 57| 879 | 1239| &4b 28] 413 409] 284
T W TOTAL INCOME 11120 83.41 | 73.00| 54.72| 46.27| d43.84| 43.95| 47.77
g, @ vd o g | Eaming beforedepreciation| 3390 | 2358 | 2118|1383 1320 1196 1145) 992
et Interest and Tax (PBDIT)
e [nteres! : : 2 : :
TERT Depreciation 218| 237 243 1.57 2400 1.32 1.39 1.23
FaE gl w Profit before Taxation SL7H| 2121 | 1875 1220 1120 1064| 10.06| B.6Y
FANE & AR A Profit after Taxation JI0Z) T448 | 1482 7.H0| 1005 164 1006 R0
wegnt wd wfrwafaar | Gross Fixed Assets 6386 | 59.77 | 58.75| 67.77| S5385| 5396| 56.06| 5536
e T4 et | Net Fixed Assets Mol 2127 | 756 | 1646 13.65] 1447| 1548 15m2
aawE el Current Assels,
= v i Loans and Advances 12542111091 | 10028 | 10053 8271 7073 7620 7249
HARA T v Current Liabilibes and
wWETE Provisions 4130 40.18 | 3856 3643 2107 1673 5263 5924
Frvir Working Capital B412| 7173 | 67.72| 6510 6154 5401 2357 1320
¥ 79 Networth 10921 93.00 | 8528 8155| 75.04| 6848 3883 | 28.78
T (HerR)(n ) | Production (Catalyst) (MT) 436 39 182 105 220 501 AR 9R2
ol (w2 (M A) | Sale (Catalyst) (MT) awg| 87| 182 153 28| 6| 2me|  ss7
W A Dividend Payout Akl 381 346 1.73 - i - -
wE Heah Key Indicators :-

fagarm Particulars 2010-11 | 2009-10| 2008-09 | 2007-08 | 2006-07 | 2005-06 | 2004-05 | 2003-04
e airEaE a9 | Current Assets i
T wieEaam &% (%) | Net Total Assets (%) 11599 112033 | 12462 | 12450 | 110.22 | 103.29 | 196.24 | 251.88
ik G Gein] Current Ratio FO03:0 | 2780 | 27&:3 | 2790 | 3911 | 4231 | 14571 | 1220
Tz e A Acid Test Ratio 2020 | 2720 | 2681 | 27000 ) 3730 | 3881 1291 | L
fauifem 93 7 (9) | RetumonCapital Emploved | 2909 | 2281 2197 | 15m | 1487 | 1549 1940 | 21.04
(%1 Y ywra (%) (Before Tax)
sfd ww (%) | Return on Equity (5) 18370 [ 12260 | 10838 | 7087 | e4.74 | 61.50| 3815 | 30.23
(T =) | (Before Tax)
HERE G W T | Valye Added per Emplovee | 470 | 283 260 [ 133 175 139 a0 11e
(tvmad) (@ in Lakhs)
W Y FERNE) (U | Famming PerShare (EPS) (1) 1,215 | 837 857 51| S8l a15| 582 | s02
WA RAEESET (%) | pROIT/ Tumover (%) WS | 2827 29.01| 2527 2853 [ 27.28| 2605 | 2077
TF WA (%) | Returnon Networth () | 2010 2281 | 2199 | 1503 1493 | 1558 | 2591 | 30.00
(2 .TE“ (Before Tax)
A R MOU Parameters Excellent® |Excellent| Excellent | Excellent | Excellent -

* A YEEEA & TR UM 3 4 ZreRwn % ge qeanaA andl femn s #
* As perself assessment, Assessment by MOU Taskforce yel to be done.
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T 22.06.2011

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND
AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 81%4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
1956 ON THE ACCOUNTS OF PROJECTS &
DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 3™ MARCH, 2011.

The preparation of tinancial statements of
Projects and Development India Limited for the
year ended 31st March 2011 in accordance with
the financial reporting framework prescribed under
the Companies Act, 1956 is the responsibility of
the management of the company. The Statutory
Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India under Section 619(2) of the
Companies Act, 1956 are responsible for expressing,
opinion on these financial statements under seclion
227 of the Companies Act, 1956 based on
independent audit in accordance with the auditing
and assurance standards prescribed by their
professional body the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. This is stated to have been
done by them vide their Audit Report dated 2™
June 2011.

[ on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India have decided not to review the
report of Statutory Auditors on the accounts of
Projects & Development India Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2011 and as such have nao
comments to make under section 619(4) of the
Companies Act, 1956

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Sd/-

(M.K. Biswas)

Principal Director of Commercial Audit
& Ex-Officio Member Audit Board-11,

New Delhi.

Place : New Delhi,
Dated : 22.06.2011
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Development India Limited”

We have audited the attached Balance sheet
of PROIECTS & DEVELOPMENT INDIA LIMITED
as at 31" March, 2011 and also the Profit and Loss
Account and Cash Flow Statement of the Company
for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s Management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
mis-statement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. As required by Companies (Auditors’ Report)
Order, 2003 as amended by companies
(Auditor’s Report) (Amendment) Order, 2004
(Collectively the Order) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A)
of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of
such checks as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations
given to us, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
4 and 5 of the said order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure

referred to above, we report that :
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Y F WmE |, 3
30 Al 1 AErE @ g AEE WA F T
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a)

b)

)

d)

0]

i)

i)

We have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as
required by law, havebeen kept by the company so
far as appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance sheet, Profit & Loss Account and
cash tlow statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

Central Government has directed vide
notificabion no. (.5, K. 829(E), dt. 21.10.2003 that
clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956 is not applicable to a
Lovernment Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
financial statement, read together with the notes
thereon, comply with the accounting standards
reffered to in the Cumpﬂ nies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended by the
companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rule, 2008 referred by the Central Government
exerdse of the power conferred under sub-section
(1) (a) of section 642 of the Companies Act, 1956
to the extent applicable and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India -

in the case of Balance Sheet, of the State of
Affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2011

in the case of Profit & Loss Account, of the Profit
tor the year ended on that date, and

iii) in the case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash

Place : Noida (U.P)
Dated : 2nd June, 2011

flows for the year ended on that date.

For Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. - U0U561N

(Mukesh Goyal)
Mg. Partner
M Na, 081810
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

1.

a)

b}

<)

al

(Annexure referred Win our report of even dale)

The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

The Company has a phased programme of
physical verification of its fixed assets at least
in cycle of 3 years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets,
Management has physically verified certain
fixed assets during the year in accordance
with the programme. Discrepancies noticed
on such verification as compared to book
records were not material and have been
properly adjusted in the books of accounts.

The Company has not disposed off
substantial part of the fixed assets during
the year. However, an amount of # 566.38
Lakhs (WDV # 89.82 lakhs) [(previous year
# 567.19 Lakhs (WDV # 90.63 lakhs)]
representing gross value of non-active fixed
assets (including assets of R&D division of
Sindr) other than land & building as on
Balance sheet date have been continued to
be held for the disposal and estimated
realizable / nominal value shown against
held for disposal. However assets of
Engineering Divisions though held for
disposal which are in use have been shown
under normal gross block of the company.
In our opinion, this does not affect the going
concern status ol the Company.

According to the information and
explanation given to us, the stock of finished
gouds, stores and spare parts and raw
material have been physically verified by
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b)

c)

al

year. In our opinion, the frequency of
physical verification is reasonable.

According to the information and explanation
given to us, the procedures for the physical
verification of inventory followed by the
management are, in our opinion, reasonable
and adequate in relation to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business.

In our opnion, the Company is maintaining
proper records of inventory. The
discrepancies noticed on physical verification
of inventory as compared to book records
were not material and have been properly
dealt with in the books of accounts .

The Company has not granted / taken any
loan, secured or unsecured from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the Register
maintained under Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, Accordingly clauses 4(i)
(b) to (g) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us during the course
of audit, there are adequate internal control
systems commensurate with the size of the
Company and the nature of its business with
regard to the purchase of inventory and fixed
assets and for the sale of goods and services.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the
books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted
auditing practices in India, we have neither come
across nor have been informed of any instance
of major weaknesses in the aforesaid intermal
intermal control svstems.

Based upon the audit procedures applied
by us and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the particulars of contracts and
arrangements referred to in section 301 of
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b,

b)

a)

the act, have been entered in the register
required tobe mamtained under that section

[n vur opinien, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the
transactions made in pursuance of contracts
or arrangements entered in the register
maintained under Section 301 of the Act and
aggregating during the year of Rupees five
lakhs or more in respect of one party have
been made at prices which are reasonable
having regard to market prices for such
transactions, prevailing at the relevant time,
where such market prices are available.

The company has not accepted any deposits
from the public within the meaning of
sections 58A and 58AA orany other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956
including the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposit) Rules, 1975.

In our opinion, the Company has an internal
audit system commensurate with the size &
nature of its business.

The Central Government of India has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records
u/s 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956
tor any of the products of the Company.

According to the records of the Company,
undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Service
tax, Custom Dutty, Excise Duty, Cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable,
have been generally regularly deposited with
the appropriate authorities during, the year.
There are no such dues outstanding for more
than six months as on the date of balance sheet.

b) According to the information and explanations

given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, there are no dues of Custom
duty, Service tax, Wealth Tax and Cess that
have not been deposited on account
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of any dispute except the following dues of
income tax, sales tax and excise duty along with
the forum where the dispute is pending :

Nature nf  Amount Perod to which  Forum where dispule
dues I® in lakhs Mhe amount relales s pnmlmﬂ_

Health/ 43112
Educathon Cess

Sales Tax

Nt Available Supreme Courd

Ata it 199 )92 ju

19NE-9%

Assitanl Commissjoner of
Commurcial Taves, Dhanbad

0.11 199485 o
Fun-47

13- 1994

Assistant Commisdoner of
Sales Tav, Rourkela
Assigtant Collector of
Central Excrse. Dhantad
200800 A Y.)  Commisshiner ol Income
Ton (Aprpeall Ghisrlabad

7.25%

Eacise Dhity

Incognw Tax 2.7&

10, There are no accumulated losses of the Company
as at the end of the financial year. There is no
cash loss during the financlal year and in the

immediately preceding financial vear.

11, According to the information and explanations
given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, the Company had nodues toany

financial institution or banks or debenture holders.

12, According to the information and explanations
iven tous, the Company has not granted any loans
and advances on the basis of secunty by way of

pledge of shares, debentures, and other securities.

13.  The Company does not fall within the category
of Chit Fund / Nidhi / Mutual Benefit Fund /
Societies and hence the related reporting

requirements of the order are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations
given tous, the Company is not dealing or trading
in shares, securities, debentures and other
investments and hence the related reporting
requirements of the Order are not applicable.
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18.

19.

20.

Place: Noida (L)
Date: 2nd |une, 2011

[n pur opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, during the year the

Company has not given any guarantee for the
loans taken by others from banks or financial
mstitubions.

As per information and explanation given to
us, the Company has not obtained, term loan
during the year.

According to the information and explanation
given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, the company has notobtained
any short term loan during the vear.

The Company has not made any preferential
allotmentof shares during the year to companies
and parties and covered in the register
maintained under section 301 of
Companies Act, 1956

the

According to the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not issued any
secured debenture during the vear.

The Company has not raised any money by
public issue during the year.

According to the information and explanation
given to us, during the year, no fraud on or by
the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed
of such case by the management.

for Doogar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.o- D00S6TN

(Mukesh Goyal)
Mg. Partner

M.No. 0815810

41



PDIL
Lk E
—
A 93 -3 mrE. 201 ) 796 BALANCE ‘ill[[T AS AT 3IST MJ\RCII 2011
seqget s AS Al AS AT
SCHEDULE Mst MARCH 2011 Jst MARCH 2010
No. iw] ()
L. fafu & @ . SOURCES OF FUNDS:
syrfral =1 fafa 1. SHAREHOLDERS® FUND:
sin it Share Capital ¢ |72 985,000 172,985,000
st 4 sham ib) Riserves & Surplus e A CH AT R 753,275,405
mor Fafia I LOAN FUNDS:
wrfan T tay Secured Loans =
e W (b} Unsecured Loans -
smafa wr-g9mitw 3. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES -
w1 senfa W et {ad Deferred tax Liabilities 32.607,790 .
Ny IR sTaEnT (b} Liessi : Delerred tax{ Assets) 28 846,607 3,761,183
gt o it ) - . [
i Total 092,055,813 930,021,588
1. fafirad = sgum Il. APPLICATION OF FUNDS:
1. e fereaT 1. FIXED ASSETS : ¥:
i AFE #w la) Gross Block WL ITLINN 385,103,221
Y W . SRR (b} Less - Depreciation W8, 4hd 34T 384,961,690
) T wiE i Net Block I14.00m 55 200,141,531
q) W e w5 idl Capital Work-in-Progress AT pOR LR SUAL 12,564 925
240,102,755 212,711,456
+ o 2. INVESTMENTS X & | 1
o smfm @ oftaafea 3. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
sneim W siiiam Diefermed tay Assets LB TRy -
WM s W T Léwa < Deferred tax Liabilities 25035421 VL8251 1 -
i wAgE afraatal 4. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS
wm wE Wiy AND ADVANCES :
¢ ur iR Ll Inventories 3 212,108 23,484,093
m) Tabw= i By Sundrv Deblors ‘6 57 347,484 183,392 585
i s vl el Other Assots ‘BA° L KT 67,707,131
wy Ay oM T 9 1dl Cash & Bank Balances 7 R, 520,40 B, 93, 510
3 W omE s vl Loans & Advances - AM7815. 180 198,504,099
Wt - whae 'EW e Less: CU - 1,254.173.647 1,119,182,318
TTAE AND PROVISIONS
aiuE FEA Current Liabilities pex b T 275700077
VG Provisions IWIBEM 315706 200,115,170 401 872,187
e aar ofraafaa NET CURRENT ASSETS 841,127 . %41 173103
5 fafeuw =m 5. Miscellaneous Expenditare 111" -
(e satad ) {to the extent nol written off /adjusted) - -
el TOTAL I 092, I;IS'S_H I_'!l B mw
wrateEa Aifaar Accounting Policies & 9
wa ur fewforai Notes to Accounts -
q:%?qm tﬁﬁm‘“‘“ﬂ] L] :;-?T:EI“ i .ﬂmat Ihl:-:-:r F:T::"."ﬁmw} [ hrrrntnh:ﬁklﬂ'm Pl o
= Ffa iﬁl' e R < S Inte rm\\;f:n tr[ﬂ‘l;f:\;.l-::; attacbuisd
'ﬁﬁ W m !m" Chartercd Acoountants
WEE UEEAZH, WH W Uuwe A 000561 N Firm Regn. No (03618
PR )
fearw : 291, 200 - DHIRLO [2ade + 2md Junat, X1 M Mo ¢ (R0
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31STMARCH 2011

SR W

SCHEDULE No.

= | () I
T CHE
w7 Han

A4 3= Y
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gt ofns & famma
qfieEm F9 WOET
HiagH

oA

aH & =W

qATAT WIS )
7E 7Y # A A
e 5 A

siesfrm 3 yieregiem ey

APt (9 )T W e

& W A Y

fafm & fimg auems @y

Farfem .
ufER FWE

TRl W T Wi (Hen A

W e S R

INCOME
Services rendered
Sale of products

Gross Sales

Less : Excise Duty
Met Sale /Service
Other income

TOTAL

EXPENDITURE

(Aceretion) / Decrelion to stock
Materials consumed

Power, Fuel, Water & Electriciiy
Hiring of Services

Salaries, Wages & other
benefits to employees

Other expenses

Loss on disposal/

discarding of fixed assets
Depreciation

TOTAL

Profit for the year

Prior Period Adjustments (Net)
Net Profit before Tax

Income Tax Current Year
Deferred Tax (Assets)/ Liability
Tncome Tax (Net) for earlier years
MNet Profit after Tax

Profit available for appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS :

Dividend Proposed

Transfer to Ceneral Reserve

l'l]}‘
12

13

14!

.tq:

"6’

.-’]l;,rr

f-lsr

200011
{7

Y434, 3806
130,081,360
1,038, 5315,928
13, B

| 025,365 243

HA, 657,942

112,027,175

(22 441().684)
R R R
37,124 954
4 0T 4 0%

475.ATNSTT

|43, T, 6000

115,559

21,766,780

7HB,654,766

323,372,389

(5,573,305)
317,799,084
I D, 00000, 00
{14,586/, 204)

6,200,000

210,185,383

210,185,383

38,056,700

Tax on Dwidend Proposed including Education Cess 320 742

21,018,535

wnfeE s whaem 4 gsEam Transfer from Reserve & Surplus (12,537
ArsEATETR WA W oame  Gratuity o VRS/VSS employes 12,533
Fafrm s W fm =gm Past liability of Medical leave

Frt @ wmar mar sfave Surplus Carried Forward 144,789,403

yiw a7 e (z e g T 1000) Eamning per share (at par value of ¥ 1000)

- gR i mfem - Basic & Diluted 1,215.05

TH_ ST, faliH m%‘ T ﬁ”‘-{ﬁ wEET S.R. Sahoo ALK, Parashar
’i-‘-"'FI'I' 'q'fTFl h—':?ﬁh— | T :qu ) ATEas! '."3"1 ‘_'l'ﬂ-i.'-'T fw.ﬁ Cisipaplangy Secirtary I Heritiar |:|..||I'AT. b |

e fife 51 Hem wur e F s
T g wwe A

TR THIEEAH, FE Wi TAERIT S AN

T T

(4, )

fe=mE o, 2|

te i

t ORI

Ml

Seoriala
Irgd [t 2000

MM

2009-10
(%)

722532 906
25,611,998
748,144,904
1,951,055
746,192,949
87,890,774

834,083,723

2,660,532
8,195,419
22 246458
64,014 538

403,365,838
S6,354,278
96,152

23,718,222
620,701,457

213,382,266

(1.272,625)
212,109,641
" 6R,000,700

(722420)

RIIT]
144,832,061

38,0056, 70
5,320,742
14,483,206
(29, 05(,5928)
2,820,070
20,2300.858
B5,971.413

837.25

h.C. Katta

bkt & Marmcini Lirectin
In vermis of our repor of even idiote atched.
For Doogar & Associntes

Chartered Accoantants

Firm Hegn, Mo (K0EGTN

Mukesh Goyal
”‘-1',', |'|r=|r|r|'|

43



2

I=EH14
it 2 and ua

CASHFL
FORT

_—
awe waw faaro
31 ==, 201 % wErE 'Y W Ao
ﬁl"ﬂ?ﬂ“l Particulars
¥ | WA SaEendl # Tahdl Warw | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

H W TEF AE AW

Ty W
IE SN RER W TR 9 R

W=

WA

i WA W W | g = T
S e T 8RR e S
HEFE T wHE § UEe
RATATATE  FH

L2 LB

<A TR 9EEE F g

o o O

TEE

E TE 3 W 9 e

fafas #wemiean

=1 TR

= =mE A3 o

Net Profit before Tax,

Adjustiment for:-

Add -

Lrepreciation.

Misc. Expenses Written off

Liss on disposal/ discarding of fised assets

Lioss -

Interest Received

Fxcess Provision Written back

Prafit on sale of Fixed Asset
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
WORKING CAPITALCHANGES
Add -

Increase in Liabilities & Provisions
[Decrease in Inventores.

Liras -

Increase in trade & Other receivable -
Sundry Debtors,

Chiher Assebs.

Loans & Advance /Other current assets
Mecrense in Trade Payable

[:

OWSTATEMENT
YEARENDED31ST MARCH 2011

A010-11 2009-10
T (7)) TEE (3)| TEe (2)] TR (%)
Amount (¥) | Amount ( 7)| Amount( ¥) Amount (7)

Y7 700 1R

212,109,641

)L 706, TN 23,718,322

. 525271
(E5559 | 21881 AW] 96,152 | 24339595
339,451,423 236,449,236

M, Bk eh b 57827108

2T 2461082
AU ] e 252675 | 60,540,875
IHN 2R Inh 175,908,361

e T T 17,734,730
7705 ATTHISE| ] 4590830 22311675

(35, B8 S0 35,318,500

[R20, 165] 3, 2600, 5002

LRl | s Ol TRY GLR
CTUASAT N S4448.5607) 223818, 190

ST EamaT 3 V@ TRE (%0 | NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) J46,550, 506 (25,578,154)
o | FanmE @dwmet @ TEeEr vatw| CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITTES
I Addd -
Wi E ) _ Interest received. 7 AR T2 68,437,217
e vt F e Sale of Fixed Asset 243,768 153,762
W JAE A A w0 AiE Inerease [ Decrease in CWIT (10,5220 | IS2I7HSR]  1,671,519) 705924408
e SR A W uiEea Less @ Addition to Fixed Asset (KERE TN ] (A2 533 1%6)
v FriEem @ @ 9 wEE (6 | NETCASH FLOW FROM 11316940 7,739,162
o INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)
n | faeraee wrdEmET ® TR WETE | CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTTVITIES
LB Lass -
W W HEEE Tax Paid 7 Adjustment IWLAZ 527
EH  ET Dividend Paid. V%, TR M.597 (K]
HONE FE W Corporate Dividend Tax 20,7492 3,874, 7ol
Taamem e | NET CASHFLOWFROM
W T WETE () FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 226,911,969 40,476,761
e FUTAR ek (Uo7 HT ) NET CASH GENERATED (A+B+C) 218,427 8% (5H,295,752)
W wAE 00§ TR T e | Cash & Cash Tgquivalent in fst April 2010 ndi LA U4, 380 267
Fadl H T wEs A FEAgs | noease/ Decrease in cash & cash Equivalent MARA27 R (38,245,752
1 W, 01| A S W T e | Cash & Cash Egquivalent in 31 March 2011 Fid 321 4iH BN S 10
UH.3N. Hig W, I ﬂ:ﬁ ool SR Salo AJK. Parashar K.C. Kaltn
T Hfe fegei | s ifs ) s o0y PR iy Seviran Thie yur (Uit Noomew® | farrpun Mhmeragony, 100w tai
g fafw =1 wam o fome 5 ST In verms ol our repart af even date attached.
A G TS THHAEE For Doogar & Associates
URTSEEE, H S gEm S (0S61N Chartered Acvountants
W T Virrre Hegn. Moo (00500 &
o [ B (L E & mE M MNeinda \1::“‘:!1 U(:I-Hlt
i 2 1 o, 2010 3% ~ (H1%10 Dt . 2l Junes 2011 h;‘Ni llrlllrzlll:illn
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T 1 SCHEDULE ‘Y’
o ll_qfl' SHARECAPITAL
Th: - B G s 11 HrE 2010 wF
An al 3ial Mareh 2001 Asal Flst March 2010
i#) (%)
wferaga AUTHORISED
T |0 Wi e S 4,70,000 Equity Shares
470000 efERT wEr of # 1000/ - each 370,000,000 470,000,000
T T W AT am 1,30,000 7% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
LTl e e Preference Shares of ¥ 1000/ - each 1ACLO 130,000,000
LAl FRE NN 600,000,000 600,000,000
Frifam, wfeew it wew g3t ISSUED SUBSCRIBED & PALD UP h -
wE M F 172985 A 172985 Equity Shares [(Previous year [ 72,985,000 172,985,000
T | (A AR | TI9%s 172985 Equity Shares (out of which 42485
(fm=T 42485 o 51 ¥ = shares were allotted as fully paid up for
s TRl = wiws & fAm consideration other than cashi] of = 1000/ -
ol WE WW T E ¥ 4 sEe) | each
= Total 172,985,000 172,985,000
I 2 SCHEDULE ‘2
i | wfugre RESERVES & SURPLUS
W &1 A T
AS AT Utilizalion Addition AS AT
1st April 2010 during the year during the vear  ¥1st MARCH 2011
(%) (¥F) (%) (#®)
gATA e Capital Reserve 1,037,508 - - I40557,568
(34,037,568 () () (34.0137.568)
H= AEE General Reserve 14,880,187 12,533 21.01R534 65,586,142
(53,447 409} (23,050,928) (14,483,206) (44,880, 187)
o m Profit & Loss A 74,357,650 . |44, 789 403 K1Y, 147,053
(584,386,237 - (#5871 413) (674,357 150)
A Total 753,275,405 . 1253 165,607,941 919,070,613
(675,871,714) i B,U_WU,'QZH_P EUU,-EE&,EE!‘_F (753,275,405
Az % 7 d & wd weEn o oad @ § fuwd e ovm s 19 @ w5 oS 13
Note : Figure in “( )" represents previous year *Refer nole no, : 13 of SH 19B)
FAFE 37 SCHEDULE ‘3A’
=T G i CAPITAL WORK-IN-FROGRESS
_ 1) w2010 W 31 W 2010
As at 5ist March 2011 Asal 31se March 2000
. *) (%3
TR WA W Plant & Machineny Tiaals 172,001
EN T Othice Butlding | 70,84
A aimwfEn (a1 Intangible Assets (ERI) 25117 7Hh 10,707,083
26,092,904 12,569,925
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WI"F" 4 SCHEDULE ‘4
fawT INVESTMENTS
- \| W A 11 W 2010 W
Asal 3isi March 2001 As at 31st March 2000
- — R LT} (%1
EEE e Long Term :
FEm (FE @ osEEfeE W # Investment (Non-Trade unguoted & valued
i) T e A at cost) 50000 shares of ¥ 10/- each in
e W WEE ¥ 10 % shooo ¥ M/s. Rourkela Nitrate Ltd., Bhubaneshwar 500,000 500,000
T e F A s Less @ Provision for dimunition in value 4u% auy 4099 999
o 1
AT 5 SCHEDULE “5"
Wer gierat INVENTORIES
WS 200l 31 T 2010 T
As al 31st Mareh 2017 As at 31st March 2010
R — =) ()
w=iw (WA 5w geaea s Stocks (as per inventories taken valued
TN W S & certified by Management)
=, wprd, A vA SfEn Stores, spares, chemicals & packing 21, tind (194 21,965,331
el ¥ 28442 = materials [(Includes T 284412 /- stores
frmm (fURe = 99) under inspection)(Previous Year Nil)|
o Raw materials 6,150,672 4,092,882
AR W Finished goods 285,841,228 11,633,104
s @ wE Semi-finished goods 9,511,713 4,239,148
fafe= fiammel ¥ afafEa Surplus from different Projects 1,539,205 1,888,452
G7. 706912 43,818,917
HETE : wEE A7 B AT Less: Provision for loss on Unserviceable
R W WE, el A stores, spare parts, raw materials
T W WR W @t F wEeA and finished stock. 2(1.494 81 20,333,924
LG Total 47,212,108 23,484,993
W 6 SCHEDULE “6"
fatas et SUNDRY DEBTORS
As al 31st March 2011 As at 31st March 2010
i) o 201 ¥ (W) 11 w4 2000 7R (F)
w o A st s@ & Debts outstanding over _
T W ST six months {unsecured)
firmrrir Considered gouod 55, 153 5407 52,269,321
i Considered doubtful 8,272k __8,803,514
63,425,023 61,072 B35
= T ( ariEm ) B ae Other Debts (Unsecured) Considered good 102.3490,392 131,123,264
| 163516015 192,196,099
wem o @i = ow wEeE Less : Provision for doubtful debts 8272020 5.803.514
= Total 157,543,989 183,392,585
1) el s £ F 99 i) Debts due by Directors or _other officers
Aiawifial w9 H9R AL of the Company or any of them either
pLEea I e i e e severally or jointly with any other person
v weEm, frvs swe or firms/ 'vt.companies in which any
w= W wEl 3w ) Director is partner, Director or a member. Nil Nil

i) = & e 08 s i) Maximum amount due at any time
afal Al sl during the year by any of such )
el HiaEaE FwE A person/ persons/Firm / Pvt.Companies. Nil Nil
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HTE 6T SCHEDULE “pA”
P S OTHER ASSETS
As al 315 Maseh 2019 As at 315t March 2010
- [ R T ) I o= e T (T
B R 1 sfum Over six months
o @ Considered Good
= T oFOiET S Income Accured on jobs -
TE T U Service Tax Receivable t, 341,400 5,892,605
wfarer Considered doubtful
Fd W it S Income Accured on Jobs -
= OE W Service Tax Receivable =
T AMILAM 5,802,605
7= Other
fa a Considered good
T T EHET STTE Income Accrued on Jobs 51,676,035 49,074,054
e e Service Tax Recejvable O H4H (128 11,994,972
s, 865,406 T AR961,631
=@ 3% wm A o w) Contract Work-in-progress (at cost) 215,541 745,500
e Total 67,080,966 67,707, 131
e 7 SCHEDULE “7"
Tihs UH @ 99 CASH & BANK BALANCES
As al 31st March 2011 Asat 31st March 201()
1w I oTw (F) 11 "W 2000 W (F)
THE ¥m W Cash in hand 250,540 216,866
e &% W I Balance with scheduled banks
. wE WA - in current account I 350, 79 22,842 371
- TEESR F -in FDR's H34.918,059 623,034,273
(¥ A =E F Feg (Pledged against Bank Guarantees/
F 249184 = OD ¥ 2491.84 lakhs )

(T a1 ¥ 216434 F0E)

b T

(Previous year # 2364.34 lakhs)

Total

Hod,521,404

646,093,510
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a1 8§ SCHEDULE “8”
E R ClcL LOANS & ADVANCES
: As at 31st March 2010 As at 31st March 2009
W = 20 e () 1w 2000 7w (%)
T :- LOANS :-
g -foe W wF Secured-considered good - .

SEY

HeTE ¢ WNE

fram urpen =

wE " 3 o sW e

=

Unsecured-considered good

ADVANCES :-
Recoverable in cash

or kind or for value to be
received (unsecured):
Considered good
Considered doubtfu)

Less: provision for doubtful advances

Prepaid expenses
Deposit with customs,
Port trust, Excise etc.
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: provision

Other deposits .
Considered good
Considered doubtful *

Less: provision

Other Current Assels
Interest accrued but not due
Advance Income Tax Paid

Total

12,359,421
510,812
12,870,213
510,812
12,359,421

4. 801,398

9549 380

5,760,778

5.760,778

9,570,980
1023 p32

10,5%4.012

1,023,032
9,570,980
33,925 889
56,198,112
117,815,180

S = W W agw W ste 5% 8 Due by the following either severally or jointly

frietaE g m

%) Btwwrm

) stipEimm
sfywaa wwom T .
w1 Pegoacm

W fesrmm
apn G e s
% fdmmm

o s

with any person :

ta} Direclors

(b1 Officers

Maximum amount due from .
(a) Directors

b} Officers

Minmmuom amount due from
{a) Directors

(b) Officers

72173
72,173

20,125,853
310,412

20,636,665
510,812

20,125,853
3259,225

1,065,738

4,324,963

4,324,963

7,589,384
939,938

8,529,322
639,938
7,569,364

32574057
133 817,664

k 198,504,099

131315

72,173
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SCHEDULE 97
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

As at 3ist ’t_‘t_arch 2001 _A:s_a; st March 2010
uardmnm:qn 3|wifzmumtf!

%) whum Fwa A. CURRENTLIABILITIES

fafam il Sundry Creditors -

i @ Capital accounts S 4422,175

A u =m Supplies & expenses W,227 491 28,551,887

W A v Salaries & Wages R 33,572,059

oE oW W w9 Advances/adjustable receipts

sy T mite Against contracts /jobs-in-progress K7, 189,783 54,834,240

frfa ofar shs warn @ Security & earnest money deposits [, 190, 305 15,759,747

T TR W ST GOl Grant 1, 4008, 200 8,093,035

S EE Other linbilities 10,245,723 47.523.054
253,506,840 192,757,077

W) urEE B. PROVISIONS:-

wf# ST Earned Leave B2N24,427 72,160,016

Taiwmmn  sEwm Medical Leave 21,.n42.150 21,098, 184

v % e genmm Provision for Income Tax 11044.941 71,479,468

{20011 = P wamr |0 & (Prov, for 200010 € 1160 Lacs

w2 # oo ) ) Lems : Ady. Tax € 1049 Lacs)

weafam  #vin Mropesed Dividend

| A famem wr wfem | In¢luding Dividend Distribution Tax .77 442 4,377 442

T a20742 (T W T 632074 T 6320742 (Previous Year® 3207423 | 159,238,566 209,115,110
413,045,706 401,872,187

sEg=Er 10 SCHEDULE *“10”
fafag ==t MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE

rmr‘nﬁﬁ T )

(T THE EXTENT NOT WRITTEN OFF

aprfim T ey

Deferred Revenue Expenditure

;W Wi @ s Lessilo the extent written off /adjusted

Hhed Tutal

-

g 11
UEw Hars | uE 34|

As al ¥t March 2001
il W (v

ﬁﬂ.hl![n

Asal 'Hs.t March 2mn
3 o 2ale T (F)

SCHEDULE “11”

SERVICES RENDERED

2.626.104
2,626,104

Far the year ended 315t March 2011 For the vear ended 31st March 2010

TR i IE-E i E-Ed 3 A G w R % fie

= _ L¥F) o (r)
v s, Engineering Services 2544004 663,713,215
w= 0 3% g 8 v I Accretion / {Decretion) to Contract WIT (30,0000 (1,184,580)
Pt s Inspection Services K521 0,004,271
=™ TOTAL: 8,434 68 722,532,906
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g 12 SCHEDULE “12”
ITE = SALE OF PRODUCTS N
For the year ended For the year ended
st March 2011 31st March 2010
TR E - E&: 3w o w1 oA o o5 By
o N | SE——— ()
T Catalysts 128913502 23951,247
e Others |, 167 WY Lﬁm,?ﬁ‘l_
130,081,560 25,611,998
T : TR TR Less : Excise Duty 12,146,685 1,951,955
= famt Net Sale 117,934 875 23,860,043
I 13 SCHEDULE “13”
3 3 OTHER INCOME
For the year ended For the year ended
Ist Mareh 2011 31st March 2010
|| ol e e = o Y N = g w T e E fm
(¥) (%)
fETrm Renl B X3, 064 HE83 13.3:5,&3_2
W TeAdLan W = Interest on bank FDRs 8849 4904 57.827.108
fafauy s Miscellaneous Income 110,264,387 13,453,907
ST FN ud S Profit on sale of un-serviceable
o =1 faw W =M Stores & discarded assets 130,95() 252,675
fasi 5o @ ¥ qwvegE A W Gain in Foreign Exchange rate fluctuation 931,214 79,310
wfol, tand sfuw wmw Excess provision/credit balances/ 2111404 2,461,002
o = A FEA liabilities etc. written back
85,657,932

| 87,890,774

SCHEDULE 14"

(ACCRETIONYDECRETION TO STOCK

For the year ended For the year ended
st March 2011 I 31st March 2010
1 wE 0w e % o3 oW 30 . oware oql o e
S - o (%) (%)
CLOSING STOCK
Finished goods 28 841,228 11,663,104
Semi-finished goods 9511713 4,239,148
38,352,941 15,872,252
OPENING STOCK
Finished goods 11,663,104 15,695,766
Semi-finished goods 4,239, |48 2,837,018
15,872,252 18,532,784
{Accretion) /| Decretion to stock (22,481,689 (2,660,532)

al



SCHEDULE “15”
MATERIALS CONSUMED

For the vear ended
Jist March 2001 1 h
R - FOE 2. . E 2. B R - B TR -.F . &8

For the year ended
st March 2010

(7) (%)
el HIE RAW MATERIALS
wE EE Opening Stock I B2 3,808,492
Wi oiw e Opening Stock Adjustment
FI Purchases M IS W7 (392,075
LR el L 1044071 467
I : A W Less : Closing stock b 150672 4,092,582
F=0 W W Raw Material Consumied 84,247,577 6,308,385
e PACKING MATERIALS
i = Crpening Stock 2070 178,713
silerw = mmEs Clpening Stock Adjustment :
T Furchases L0Te R3S 408
3309 M6 1,017,211
a2Ta 1 W = Less: Closing stock E10), ubn — 293030
T Wi ' Yicking Material Consumed 724,181

wERA A
UETE - W A6 W
T T
fp v e
T T, =P oA

e T

16
%ﬁmw@m

T OWEEH W S
ufsmn fahr o s

STORES, CHEMICALS & SPARE PARTS
Orpvenving. Stock

Dipening Stock. Adjostment

["urchases )/ Transfers

Less: Climing shock

Stares, Chomicals & Spare Parts Comsunisl
GROSS CONSUMPTION

Less ¢ Triu o iher accounts

Raw Malorial

[ & Fud

Caputal ASe, stores & spares

NET CONSUMPTION

N ¥4

Salartes, Wages & (Othey Benetis
Copbributbon o Provident Fusd

T WAE Tnll

AT
14,577 353
Th 40 A5
21 LM, s
15,181,158

W2ATT NS

[Z51HAT0
477 .THS
12,900,195

A%, 400, 9

SCHEDULE "16”
SALARIES, WAGES & OTHER BENE]-'I:I'S TOEMPLOYEES

For the vear endod

Fst March 2011
LA O L O R TT= L

RN R
20,6823 300

21 M Th7

12_IH5
5,507 152
3,834,751
10,867 517

1LBS0, 1R

821,450
2eTLI08
8,195,409

For 1 h.u-"n,'u.'u ended
st March 2010

L7}
InT Bi1.211
24,270 WS

afsn sEFm Earmind Letave V30 34 S
AT WEEm Medical Leavw B3, s HET, T
ATTEE Graluity A 447670 1257 978
st % A wemmEatt we Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses TH A 3N LN 248
Eieeisu e lvwnship Expenses 431710 A7, Tk
w3 aTTd AT W R Payment of VRS/VSS to employees
T Ciratuily L RLEE ZR17. 255
o T (b Pavimen| 4, 4ua 12,533 2,835 2,820, 17U
#7560, 110 400,205 908
YT HTESN T W T Los  Litliedtion o Corneril [esetwi 2513 RN
R Tutal 475,670,577 A0E IB5.53K
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w17 SCHEDULE “17”
£ i ) OTHER EXPENSES
N N ‘I;ﬂm?—::; ended For the yt_mrun&_m:T
Ast March 2011 F1st March 2010
W md Wi W W B 3 A M0 W wee oW oW fam
iv) (¥}
gl s Freight & Handling 6,263 173,725
favorm Rent 4,335,560 6,755,798
WA W Rates & Taxes TUB,504 882,381
I UEE Excise Duty 1,606,524 (108,555)
WU Repairs & Mamntenance :
HYTTA Machinery 2,001,568 7,281,754
w93 Building 4,334,755 2,873,809
Ec] Others 9,690,198 8,257,801
e Insurance 259,214 274,169
e Advertisement 1.641.515 3494536
T A Postage & Telegram 1,696,525 2,153,900
g, wEE Printing, Stationery &
3 FEn = Drawing Office Expenses 6,998,326 6,132,549
4= v Bank Charges RO, (0 893,323
ofEra, W od Hire Charges of Vehicles,
= TR W OWER Computer & Other Equipment 5,241,261 3,677,781
wiww =m (FE) Software Expenses (Computer) 13,300,366 7,966,813
fafus vd =afes =m Legal & Profesional Expenses 197,683 293,645
v i Travelling & Conveyance 272259702 14,551,238
A Security Expenses 3,406,758 2,941,785
TR, = CSR Expenses 1,378,279 441,000
g, Y, e A Telephone, Fax, Internet etc. 6,153,589 5,716,063
i wm Living Expenses 647,510 1,026,684
TR, S 3 e Books, Periodicals & Journals 183,395 382,882
weie, #fven 37 9fmew #m Conference, Seminar & Training Exp 1,069 228 910,133
awdl S TTETH W R Running Expenses of Vehicles &
w W Other Equipments 763,409 676,717
g W s wfon & S wRE Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances 1LA77.758 1,365,667
=0 | W e % @ Provision Loss/on Shortage of Store,
o e, fag @ W % W Spares, Raw Materials, Finished Stock, Sale N3 2,065,034
RN YR A = Audit Fees & Expenses 466,225 400,000
HATE Y YRR 3 WS Internal Audit Foes & Expenses 458,054 517,935
Ry T =9 Directors’ Travelling Expenses 1,476,143 958.582
fafan w1 Miscellaneous Expenses 0,562,745 B.397 471
g Sanitation Charges 2,064,687 1344465
serdfay sara =m Bad Debts Written-off - 21,600
o e Bl e Less: Provision adjusted . - 600
smn fawr s Business Development Expenses 808,897 84 316
st fafion =m Misc. Expenditure Written Off . 525,221
e W st ® ol Exchange Fluctuation Loss 2,113,078 2,104,056
= Total 113,108,610 96,384,278
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SCHEDULE “18"

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

Vo the year ended For the year ended
3%t March 2017 Alst March 2010
wrE il 31 =" 2010
murs =4 & fem v = w
(%) (%)
= EXPENDITURE
fafay =m Miscellaneous Expenses 232,055 236,624
LGERCiE i Salaries and Wages 183,324 107,643
from, = =1 Rent, Rates & Taxes P2R405
a% = Contract Expenses
A Material Consumed 33,966
A CHE Service rendered 7H 00
e TOTAL 816,786 378,233
I INCOME
wEd HEn Services Rendered (5,086,373) (4,731,652}
WA WA Liss | Provision T2 854 (4,736,519} 3,537,260 (594,392)
HA TS ARG Salaries & Wages
% = Contract Expenses
wigwr  feit wEnm w1 w22 Provision for doubtful debts
L e W 5 B & advances written back
T TOTAL 14,756,519 (894,392)
g WAy (FE ) Met Income / (Expenditure} 15,573,305} (1,272,625}
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SCHEDULE-19

A
I

I1.

1.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
General

The financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis under the historical
cost convention in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles,
applicable Accounting Standards and as per
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

P'rofil & Loss Accounl
Income from Contracts is recognized as under:

Contracts completed and handed over :

Full value of contract and additional services,
if any, rendered, after providing for all
known/ guaranteed liabilities, wherever
required and reduced by income taken upto
previous accounting year.

Contracts in progress :

1.2.1 Executed by Company:

A

Design Engineering with/without
construction Supervision

Lower of Income accrued, calculated on the
basis of percentage completion as per technical
assessment of physical progress and estimated
cust upto that date, as also taking into account
estimated future liabilities accruing out of the
contract including contingencies, warranties,
ete. in terms of manhour / man month
consumed / required duly certified by Project-
in-charge except in cases where progress is
less than 15%, which is taken at cost as
contract work-in-progress. Income from

o]
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TS WREA F AN 9 F
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construction supervision is caleulated on
accrual basis,

Tumkey Projects

Calculated on the basis of proportionate
margin on the contract based on cost /
paymenls upto balance sheet date, atter taking
into account estimated amount of future
liabilities as per technical assessment arising
out of the contract including contingencies,
warranties, etc. ¢ xcept in cases where progress
is less than 25%, which is taken at cost as
contract work-in-progress.

1.2.2 Executed by Sub-contractors :

2.1
2.2

23

4.1

Income accrued is calculated on the progress
of the job achieved by the sub-contractors and
accepted by the owner / contractor after
considering estimated amount of habilities
arising out of the contract, including
confingencies, warranties, etc.

Sale of products and services
Revenue is recognized on accrual basis.

Sale of Product is net of excise duty.
Interest on FDR on accrual basis

Provisions/Liabilities

Liabilities / provisions made in previous vears
but remaining unclaimed over five years are
written back on merit basis.

Depreciation/Amortization

Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on
Straight Line Method either on the basis of rates
arrived at with reference to the useful life of
the assets evaluated by a committee or the
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feem w2

3 $000 T THY FH I E@0E w1 wede aftmfaat
wo/arfvmEm T § @ i g T8 fwm oam #)

Td WA =
® SO00/- T ® YA YOAE =Y A AU § aaE
w7 W fean fao m &

wEEs e o =h

foge ad @ A wate ¥m AR wrs 6g F o
% 20,000/, % & WA AR =@ 9 W F oa q
@ fom m #

wremfma rma =

" 59 7 @ o 3= ofwnfun a9 =9 | gwife
fam == 71

e HWET U7 39 /=9 SEiten (e T
Z% A Haya a9 3= 7| (e gfim afmn

4.2

4.3

+.4

4.5

minimum rate specified in Schedule XIV to the
Companies Act, 1956 .which ever is higher.

Deprediation on assets capitalized / disposed off
/ discarded during the vear is charged
proportionate to the date of such addition /
dispasal / discarding, No depreciation is provided
on assets held for disposal/ retired from active use.

Intangible assets (Software Applications) are
amortized over their useful life on straight line
method. Useful life of three vears without
AMC and five years with AMC of software
applications is laken as per the |.T.Policy of
the Company.

Premium on Lease hold land 1s amortized over
the period of lease.

Each Assets costing ¥5000/- or less are fully
depreciated in the year of purchase /
acquisihion,

I're paid Expenses

Prepaid expenditure incurred upto ¥ 5000/~ in
each case is charged to the current vear's
revenue account.

Prior Period Income / Expenditure

Income and Expenditure pertaining to earlier
period upto ¥ 20,000/ in each case is included
in the current year’s account.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure :

These are amortized and charged to expenses
over a period of five years.

Income/expenditune accounled for on cash basis

Claims (inclusive ot liquidated damages)
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11

o

against contracts and other claims are
accounted for on receipt/acceptance.

Sale of Scrap, etc.

Interest on overdue debtors / creditors delay
in payment of taxes, if any.

Foreign currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded
at the exchange rate prevailing at the time of
transaction. Current assets and current
Liabilities are translated at the exchange rates
prevailing at the year end and the differences,
if any, are recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account

Investments

Long Term investments are stated at cost and
provision is made for any diminution in such
value, which is not lemporary in nature.

Valuation of Invenlories

Raw Materials - at lower of cost or net
realizable value. Cost is determined on
weighted average basis

Stores & Spares - at cost, on weighted average
basis. Item of stores and spares which are slow /
non-moving are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value based on technical assessment/
estimated realizable value.

Contract work-in-progress — at cost.

Semi finished goods - at lower of cost or net
realizable value. cost is determined on
weighted average basis and includes cost of
material and proportionate conversion costs.
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Finished Goods : -

Catalyst — at lower of cost or net realizable
value.

Waorkshop against specific orders - at net
realizable value.

Fixed Assets

Fixed Assets purchased / constructed by the
company are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Fixed Assets transferred by FCI Ltd., on
bifurcation have been stated at net transfer
price less accumulated depreciation.

Additional depreciation on non active fixed
Assets is provided due to erosion in the value
of the fixed assets based on technical /
financial evaluation by the company leaving
a residual value of ¥ 1/- for each asset in the
books instead of 5% of the original cost as the
case may be.

Fixed Assets acquired outof Govt. funds/grants
are stated net of grants at a nominal value of
¥1/- per asset.

Capital work-in-progress - at cost.

Excise Duly

Excise Duty on manufacturing goods is
accounted for in the books on accrual basis but
paid on actual clearance of goods.

Government Granls
Grant received on account of voluntary
retirement separation scheme for ¢mployeus

are deducted from the related expenditure.

Grant received on revenue account are included
in other income to the extent of utilization,
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VIL. 3Emw # e VIl. Burrowing Cost
g sfetd & s s Fam w Borrowing cost directly attributable to the
T AR FUN & AP W OIH SEsd &6l acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset
E F W F w9 ° gArE fem am 8 w1 is capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
I =P H ey F e s 2 Other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.
Vil wderfral & wa VL Employees Benefit
() v Pttt it Swry vt & aiw ta)  Company’s l:tunl‘rlbtlht?l"l under‘ Fm}rtdent
- g ;P s # Fund / Employees Families Pension Scheme
NN TS ' is accounted for on accrual basis.
(@) T HT AR TR & ga AHiea ®9 (b)  Theannual ium towards gratuity liabili
pre gratuty
A A & ey 5 TreE taa T g A S for the y:a: as per actuarial vah.ltatim:u. the
g . insurer of company's yroup gratuity scheme
i ) T o s dalw are charged to the profil and loss account on
e s 1 accrual basis.
(M wEl B st smm oA fafesn  sEwm vy Earned Leave and Medical Leave benefits are
el #Y A G F AT WA provided in the accounts on the basis of
Pe i B actuarial valuation,
X IX  Taxation
' , Provision tor current Income Tax is made in
= S F o W s 1961 accordance with the Income tax Act 1961.
& wpm fam am &
o & = 1wt T ol w wm e Y D_q.-l‘c-rrud Tax resulling irgm “timing
L L D T dﬂf:'ru;lue h[wtwu;tn book p:':: |. and Ea.ml';jt
. . . " . profit tor the yvear 1s accounted {or using the
FH F w1 HiFEA = & S
W’I E; ﬁﬁm i s o tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
FH-T3 1 A ﬂﬁ? it A qq|i,|-1'£‘i[ q‘ ‘f substantially enacted as on the Balance Sheet
Frafad fam an w@ ol srufm F7 sfsfe 560 date. The deferred tax assets are recognized
Hiw 7 W Ea # s s @ o o ¥ el 9w and carried forward to the extent that there
o Hfafemm w1 fF @ afmaie wias F garmifo is a certainty that the assets will be adjusted
#T ST in future.
X FProvisions & Contingenl Liabililies

WES Ud HieReE Zgam

faelt fma w2 % wiomamEsy T e w14 W
gENE T e Wi € s 3F w9 § T
el = Jaa HanE % aferirs afm T e

A provision is recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of a past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
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to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. A
contingent liability is recognized for:

(%) ®1 9 HRE Afaw, o fara gena | g g (a) A present obligation that arises from past
# T T wEEA # ww A T e events but is not recognized as a provision
) because either the possibility that an outflow
o @ Afae # Frver % fag sifew snfeir amd of resources embodying economic benefits will
e FEreAl @ AR e wm st g w5 be required to settle the obligation is remote or
v ofn =1 fEyaog e T8 ‘ﬁ‘q‘r{ fapm =11 a reliable estimate of the amount of the
— obligation cannot be made.
() Eafa wfeE S fma meei @ svam (b) A possibleobligation that arises from past events
I ’ and the existence of which will be confirmed
iR fresil e it gfe W el o e only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
Wi S F e A¥E A ¥ 9 f wi oW one or more uncerlain future events not wholly
FuAl & T e F T E within the control of the company
Xl WA v IurE XI Eaming Per Share
wfa Yo HE IS a0 qiEwes Jre v il Basic earnings per share are calculated by
war @ #q fram & =4 & Shrs aEw fafs dividing the net for the year attributable to
ST aiEE T A e e e S equity shareholders by the weighted average
3 number of equity shares outstanding during
the year.
et 19 SCHEDULE-19
7 ) @ v Tt B. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:
|. e gaan T wase g fawar mar 1 Contingent liabilities not provided for
(v TH) ( Tin Lakhs)
51w 2000 31 W 2010 As on Ason
o~ 1 31.03.2011 31.03.2010
‘F-l' a;} m a‘; m -qﬁ 122.40 142;3’3 1 ld.! Claims EH;“M[ ﬂ'll.' {.'U]'I'\Pdn:l" not

W OWM ® BT H AG
®|) 4% MA (FO F ) 204880 1,630.61

) TE.EL0E =, TR - 0.50
w) fafve =ifan s=g amet faaze ot
Fruffra =t

acknowledged as debts. 122,40 142.33
b} Guarantees given by the banks
on behalt of the Company 2,048.80 1,630.61
¢) HDFC Guaraniee ¥ 0.50
d) Legal/ Labour cases Amount not
pending / disputed ascertainable.
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A 3% A @ @ FE g ®, Wi ap erm
T ANME W 3 4005 @R (wE sim) 7
(yed qd A wfom = 478.01 FTE A

WA & R W R T AW w1, T w5, g
wE wfafus gl 3 Bea 9 yem Wi
wIrE, aPF ¥, A s 8 i 9 e
aFA 71 A AEIAE I A s AT g
g fawuymit =79 ¢ ad | wanm fE s

ad 2006-2007 7 fawl w2 Frafon @ @ g
auifg fal =7 wiver@l 3 fa=i fedfem w
1991-92 A 94 (98990 AF F @0 HAfAEA =,
TaA, 3 fred % Aol =@ (R
ad W% 416,01 TFE) FI W H1E T EN G 0
¥ 5w faq W w4 ST oA % A A X
w1 T Hgdl W faee A T e s
498 O % fang wde T w5 a9 20H S
1w w1 o 81 weA = Gew § F o
srite ® wren e fie < B 5 wifirem
] s % foem f faee =) 80 70 O A
T 71 fa S w o uR | ¥ 2770 @ (W
i | ¥ 27,70 TE)F wEEE w5 7w #

s fm wa fepa wideys shaem F§
WA W IR A s e
mfaa F1

T HHEE 99 3A0E A & |t S e 2004
w1 §U U ANgE ¥ AR e fem we
(51 TFE gt W 755 FE AW 5 @I 0 W
wEem waa) fomm e 599 17647 TE

1.2

1.3

14

2.1

Estimated value of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided
for aggregates to ¥41.15 lakhs (Net of advances
[previous year ¥ 478.01 lakhs)).

Penal interest payable on delayed payments
of Income Tax deducted at source, Sales Tax,
Service Tax and other statutory dues, cannot
be quantified, provision if required, will be
made in the year when assessed /demanded
by relevant authority.

Assessment of Sales Tax have been completed
up to 2006-07. However the Sales Tax
Authorities had raised demands for the year
1991-92 to 1998-99 of ¥416.11 lakhs (previous
vear T 410.11 lakhs) towards additional CST
and BST at Sindri Division, without
considering the taxes deposited and for alleged
non-submission of C/IX forms in some of the
vears, The Company has filed appeals against
the said orders and also oblained a stay against
the demands. The Management is hopeful of
succeeding in the appeals. However, pending
disposal of the appeals by Sales Tax authorities,
a provision of ¥ 27.70 lakhs (previous vear
¥27.70 lakhs) towards missing Sales Tax forms
has been made.

Buildings located at Sindn and Durgapur is
on lands registered in the names of Fertilizer
Corporation of India LId., and Hindustan
Fertilizer Corporation Ltd., respectively.
Formal execution of lease-deeds thereof are
pending.

Part of buildings/ flats, i.e. (738 quarters on 31
acre land and office building on 5 acre land)
gross value ¥ 17647 Lakhs and book value

¥ 48.48 Lakhs included in the fixed assets,
located at Sindri on the land registered in the
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% 302.54 @@ (7@ 79 | T 327.00 @@) F &
FIfFa 22 F1 TEYE R/ € 204.95 W@ &
(78 & ¥ 203.34 AME) WAV @@ H qwArE]
HeTE )/ ATAIA T F W WE g S S
am ) fEm T R

ENE, s e el v s it
el A uERs (TA)-29 # genfeio
wriny fagial & ser wauEl #1 59 8 #5
dre <faa e 2

T TR A W70 S (mad g9 11739
e SeFt 8 = feae s i afk &
oy v ® fafa= 3 #1 el ® sHER 2=
U mE W @ e #

TH-7 ® s gE: afasmes sl qe
i vdagm F fau m fmim 39 w1 daiEa:

I

name of Fertilizer Corporation of India, but
belonging to PDIL have been handed over to
Central Police Forces (Ministry of Home
Affairs) as per the MOU dated 5" February,
2004 executed between Ministry of Home
Affairs and Department of Fertilizers are
continued to be shown as company assets and
no depreciation is charged on them. Formal
agreement for transfer of assets / lease deed /
transfer value is pending.

The some of balances appearing under Sundry
Debtors, Sundry Creditors, Loans & Advances,
Security Deposit and other liabilities are subject
to confirmation / reconcil:ation.

Inventories include non-moving / slow moving
stocks of stores and spares, finished goods and
raw materials aggregating to ¥ 302.54 lakhs
(Previous year ¥ 327.00 lakhs). Provision for
estimated loss aggregating to ¥ 204 95 lakhs
(previous year ¥ 203.34 lakhs) has been made
in the accounts based on technical assessment /
estimated realizable value.

There are no present obligations requiring
provisions in accordance with the guiding
principles as enunciated in Accounting
Standards (AS)-29 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities & Contingent Assets”,

Bank Balance in current accounts excludes ¥ 117.39
lakhs (previous year¥ 117,39 lakhs) held in trust
ESCROW account as per terms of various
ongoing contracts with Indian Oil corporation.

Information pursuant to AS-7. accounting
for Construction contracts in respect of
contracts for Design Engineering and
Construction Supervision:
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{?T'ﬂ'ﬂ'ﬁ) I Tin Lakhs}
$LO3.2011 31.03.2010 Ason Asan
3 = $L05.2010 31.03.2010
(%) aafu & o a6l & wra famr 4524007 342189 A) Contract revenue recognized
. as revenue in the period 4,624.27 3421.89
(@) = 1@ 3 & &l g i ) }_ _ &
B) In respect of contracts in progress
1)31:3-20m1 7% 3% Hi TH TAHTUAS 497184 i) Contract costs incurred and 767911 4.971.84
T grE F ( T2TE: v g ) recugnized profits (Less ¢
recognized losses) upto 31,0511
2 ) sifmg wifta Nil Nil N " ! -
iy  Advances received Nil Nil
3 ) whs Nil il i) Retentions Nil Nl
4 ) mEgERl W AFE daH 545,29 490.74 iv)  Cross amount due from customers S95.20  490.74
5 ) TR &1 "E iM%, 448 3IB5.66 v)  Gross amount due to customers 389,49 385.66
(M) =A@ W IH OF g B owaE s s o C.  Themethod to determine the contract revenue
Hfas A g s i fif| =0 $1 uzf recognition in the period & stage of completion
TR A i (- w@ as 1l of contracts in progress as per Para (1) of
. . clause Il of Significant of Accounting Policies
® W (1) F 5E0 8 ' B &
(Schedule-19 A).
8, T WG, T A AR 9 T R 8. The company has not received any
T T FHE A A T g & (g, =y memorandum (as required to be filed by the
1 wean 3o faem afafag. w006 5 T8 suppliers with the notified authority under
s F Afgf wiem § o T MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises
#T Y SR, TR G e - Dewlu!:umenf Act 2006} n..lau:mrlg their thﬂ'lls
i ) . ) R i as MICRO, Small and Medium Enterprises,
2, fas wha st w31 wrd 201 1 ffa = =
B ) consequently there are no such entities to
AR 45 R B afuw w€ aie 2w 2 whom the company owes dues which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as on
31 March 2011,
9. W (e ) Frmeedt, 2000 ® W 9. In accordance with Accounting Standard

sifvrfea a1 oafa 8w S
HEAE (7 UR) 2R F AAR ST afrEeferdl H
st 1 el wfs & w9 2Rk =2 @, W
T4 & o f witen F) nf 8 diw ofa @ F
weha A1 ¢, sHiem @ = e e o sfertem
T #t g #)

(AS)-28 on “Impairment of Assets” notified
under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006, the carrying amount of fixed
assets have been reviewed at vear end for
indication of impairment loss, if any. As there
isno indication of impairment, no loss has been
recognized during the year.

b4
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Employee Benefits

As per AS-15 'Employee Benefits’ the
disclosure of Employee Benefit as defined in
Accounting Standard are given below.

(&) witanfas 3wl 9= a)  Defined Contribution Plan
ofrafa stvRrE deE § stveE, o oad @ Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan,
way ¥ Freren g & 7w §) recognized as expense for the year are as under:.
P 31,03.2011 | 31.03.2010 Description 31.03.2011 | 31.03.2010
(%) (%) (%) (%)
wigwn fafa d Fraes 23,891 462 | 2,14,97.026 Employer's contribution 23,891,462 | 21,497,026
w1 HYER to Provident Fund
9y =W o s 2,700,037 | 27,73,339 Employer’s contribution i B
&1 AEE to Pension Scheme
Lm0 1 B ] : Employer’'s contribution
PR L ItC to Supemnnuation
= )ufrarfos #ma are bl  Defined Benefil Plan
HEAI0 IUEA fAfu =\ oF gioaiae @ gee 7 The employees’ gratuity fund scheme is a
TIfamEl 1 9 9E WeRE e #iee 9B @ Defined Benefit Plan. The present value of
TG did diEa 94 @ SuR or B e obligation is determined based on actuarial
¢ 9 webard  sff \ valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
e R o g = Method, which recognizes each period of
FAVE # FU H Hal F Wola Faty H AHgm s service as giving rise to additional unit of
& aw aifan TfaE {AR HE % fAg aen 3 v employee benefit entitlement and measures
offe F) oiwA §) SEEW TEGEW Hal e each unit separately to build up the final
- : 5 obligation. The obligation for leave encashment
Ht Jrer F vl F argem 8 s W is recognized in the same manner as gratuity
1. wfrefas @ Z=an (Sien ) & @9 W T . Reconciliation of opening and closing
Tias At o foaem balances of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)
Iurer ( fawamr ) |afda smam (fr-faaafeE )
ferror Particulars Gratuity (Funded) | Eamed Leave (Unfunded)
(%) (%)
2010-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10
wfterfaa = 3 Defined Benefit Obligation
a1 vwama o at the beginning of the year | 146,758,035 | 140,273,183 | 72 (e0006 | 55,020,344
& 1 @ Interest Cost 11,740,715 | 12,452,736 5,772,580 4,401 628
gYSE Hel #ra [Past Service Cost 94,994,293 - . .
ﬁl‘{m Ha T Current Service Cosl 7,776,342 3,985,722 5179616 3,560,958
g o Benefits Maid (26,053,274) | (18,086,594) (22,607 3691 (94011 ,858)
dmitsa (FEfA) Actuarial (gain)/loss (60),227,453) 81,33 888 | 21519363 -
FTer W #R Settlement cost -
ai #1 FfE W ST | DBO at the end of the year | 174,989,558 | 146,758,935 | 82,024,427 | 72,160,016

b5
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araeaT ufraufeaa & 3= o= & e W 2.

1T TR wveRT @ o

Reconeihiation of opening and closing balances
of Fair Value of Plan Assets

faam Particulars Iy (FAF9 ) Gratuity (Funded)
(%)

2010-11 2009-10
AT wTEed W 3t g6 Fair value of plan assets as
i ® yEa o at the beginning of the year |58, 715 525 127,073,957
wtge e Expected Return FICTRY 12,064,368
AitEg () /e Actuarial (gamn/loss CRIRE -
e g sivEs Contribution by Emplover 15,70, 124 37,653,794
Hay 7Y Benefils Paid 255274 (TR.UBG, 5%
fAmem =1 ' Settlement cost
4 F1 Tt W arErE wfEta Fair value of plan assets as
& EfER L atthe end of the vear it 2 158.705,525
AT WRETEal 9 AR A | Actual returm on plan assets 1200, K17 12,064,368

3, AFR W | g T w oem

3. Reconciliation ol amounl recognized in Balance

Sheet
feerr Particulars Iure ( fawareg ) | s semm(ir-fae o)
Gratuity (Funded) | Eamed Leave (Unfunded)
(%) (%)
20e-11 2009-10 20111 2009-10
AT GiEatE W SEE OEE | Fair value of plan assets Tl b4 20m NIL
=4 W ﬁ!ﬁ’-ﬂ i Present value of obligation 4 Hns, 50 NIL | S2024.427) 72160016
Frem nftafs (2) Net asset/ (lability) recognized |12 40 1) Nil [{ELO24 AT (72,160,016)
71 T q T in the Balance Shee!
B R R iR (R CILE s wiga = 4. LExpense Recognized during the period in P'rofil
' & Loss Ale
fermm Particulars Iurem ( fammtfie ) | s s (-faw ofw
Gratuity (Funded) | Earned Leave (Unfunded)
(%) (¥)
2000-11 2009-10 2010-11 2009-10
== & T Interest Cost 17071 12,482,736 | 5772800 | 4,401,628
fﬁqgl :Cil ol G Current Service Cost el 3,985,722 LT RIE] 3,860,958
g " ™ A0 Past Service Cost a1 - -
ArsTTE wfEetEE w Expected return on plan
mﬁﬂﬁlﬂ'ﬂ Assets CI S 310 ] (12,064, 368) - -
saty ® a0 i Net Actuarial (gain}/ loss
fram amfEs (F9)AA| recognized during the period SETS0T1 | 8,133.888 | 21519065 18,278,944
ki e T e e e

b6
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g, ATHETTA SAgiAa = anAias giaery

5. Actual Returmn on Plan Assels

faam Particulars I (faauifia) Geatuity (Funded)
(%)
201011 2009-10
FreErT wiiEafeal @ srifid wldei | Expected Return on Plan Assels (14,918,319) (12,064,368)
diwia (FUET) Actuarial (gain)/ loss H51,482 8,133,858
FramT wftEatEd W oartaE @ | Actual return on Plan Assets (14,266,837 (12,064, 368)
f. @ ATt gaEr 6. Principal Actuarial Assumptions
fererron ugF | wfeA 3@y | | Particulars Gratuity | Eamed Leave
( fermatfire ) | e-farer i ) (Funded) | (Unfunded)
() () (%) (%)
uE W Ha A (TR | 1994-96 1994-96 | | Mortality Table (LIC) 1994-96 1994-96
E 8.00 % 2.00 % Discount rate B.00 7 8.00 %
ufa= § a5 Ffg 5.50% 550 % Future Salary Increase 5,50% 5.50 %,
qrare sitEafaa W i Expected rate of return
wifamg = 9.40% & on plan assets 9.40% .
a1 g F oA 60 years 60 years Retirement Age Al years 6l) years
amevur 2F Withdrawal Rates
30 @ % 3.00 % 300 % Upto M) years 3.00 % 1.00 %
44 = TH 2.00 % 200 @ | | UPto 44 years 2004 2.00 %
44 =d @ = 1.00 % 1.00 % Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00 %

At o § et a0 gfE W % wa s 4
S AR § sy oht i wfen g, AR,
w=ifd s s Wan wes w1 e § T w2
diiiE® S9A q H AT B 2

||, HEg USSR WEETehTOl :
YA WEA AN IS WIEE, 9nE TS H
worEtE faaomiE € 3R @ Sam gEe
(TUR)-18 & U0 9 B A ZW T e o
ey F i s E

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary
considered in actuanal valuation, takes into account
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors including supply and demand in the
employment market. The actuary certifies the above
information.

11, Related Party Disclosures :-
Company is under administrative control of
Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilizers, Government
of India and within the meaning of state
controlled enterprises of para 9 of Accounting
Standards (AS)-18.
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w :qf?'q qrge] HUIHAT UTHR]
® § frgau mad € oy fafm
v & zwa iy 3mm % s
frasm 4 &[4 & (zmv wifsem
wufaar’, ggras safaar den
|E-WEAF St wiEs €)1

s =g fam 39 fodlfdn sem A w9
& @ g YE swer fea g @
N 3F 36 3eW W e e g
WA WA W E, Ul st w

WEE WA wiftE s 39 e

. ALH, THA, % U4 wad (e
02.11.2010 T

ot &4, Fz2, Fens (fam) v v
vas s 03.11.2010 § |

TH I9%H fa9 97 () FeEn (=)
¥ afeafam #g it = el
T9E F WA 3 H qhe )
fafafrz

¥
g i

&g Tt

(FTarEl ®)

\/HTA &auTd Wiear § Hag
ugwnl @ Wy fAonfaigs @9
=4 faa m=mar @

IE (%), (@) @ () o
feertias gaprmd & @)

A. List of Related Parties & Relationships

al

c)

o)

(i)

(ii)

Enterprises that directlv or indirectly
through one or more intermedianes,
control or are controlled by or are
under common control with the
reporting enterprise (this includes
holding companies, subsidiaries and
fellow subsidiaries).

Associates and joint ventures
Individuals owning directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting
power of the reporting enterprise
that gives them control or significant
influence over the enterprise, and
relatives of any such individual.

Key Management Personnel and
their relatives

Shri R.GG. Rajan, Chairman &
Managing Director up to 02.11.2010

Shri K.C. Katta, Director (Finance)
& Chairman & Managing Director
from (03.11.2010

Enterprises over which any person
described in (¢) or (d) is able to
exercise significant influence.

M/s Hindustan
Corporation Limited

Fertilizer

None

None

None

{ ¥ inLakhs)

The following transactions were
carried out / outstanding with
related parties in the ordinary
course of business

With parties referred to in (a), (b)
and (¢ ) above.

NIL
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(i)

(ii)

Iy (9) § sfeerfad guerl & @
5 s w9 F T w=a

Ao, et AT o= a1t 13.62
i .. w221 w AY F B

WeT A, SeteTr Hi 3 wRi 20.92
Indad (5) ° feate: nyE F ay

g w W AR g9 o 9 16.62

FureE fAfe ® srosmgEd AFEE Ha
U T SIgHT, Fi 4 wiHisd 919 T 2
At # swe Afufied, qoiwios FRwe =
faad 2000 fwAl 7 f=t zoww & fou
FUE T HE TEEE FA ] A @l § ud
7% fou 3= i amrsias w1 G S
F11 & AU wwe: ¥ 520/~ 91 % 780/- = WAH

FA T &

Tusan FeEa

AEHI0 AHZVE] (T UF -|7) & '@rs uiaee
F ATEY HUAT A A FHER FAH FTdFHEAM
# 7 wwEn @= § e e sl
vyl wE sfaEtael aferaTe W eens
1 fafaaim = w6 4 @ =2 & TS
grE aul s wfaess el @ fafas
wifeml ud qoEw ® wE ¥ @ T g

2
(1)

With parties referred to in (d) above.
Salaries, Perquisites and other
allowances paid during the year

to Sh. R.G. Rajan* 13.62
(ii) Salaries, Perquisites and other
allowances paid during the year
to Sh. K.C. Katta® 20.92
3 With parties referred to in (e)
above.
(i) Engineering Services rendered &
Others 16.62
(*) Excluding contributions to the Gratuity Fund
/ provision for encashable leave since the same
are on actuarial valuation. In addition, full ime
Directors are also allowed to use the
Company’s Car for Private purpose upto 12000
Kms. per annum on payment of¥520/-and ¥
780/ - per month for non air-conditioned and
air conditioned Car respectively.
12. Segment wise Performance

In line with Accounting Standards (AS-17)
“Segment Reporting” the company has
identified its business activity into bwo business
segment i.e. Consultancy & Engineering
Projects and Manufacturing of Catalyst, taking
into account the organizational structure and
internal reporting svstem as well as different
risk and rewards of these Segments. Segments

results are given below:-
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HUZ W TAE ma ¥ g Segment Revenue (Amouni in ¥ )
Afvaitasi Td qUH 008 434 368 Engineering & Consultancy 9N8, 434,368
o & fafqam 117,934 R75 Manufacturing of Catalyst 117,934,875
= 1 026,369 243 Total 1,026,369,243
TR | | W (afaem) Segment Profit (Return) from Operation
sivaifist @ qae 246 429 659 Engineering & Consultancy 246,429 639
= fafagin (8.715.202) Manufacturing Catalyst (8,715,202)
FH - & 237,714 A57 Total -A 237,714,457
&t qEEeE 5573 305 Prior Period Adjustment 5,573,305
=T - Interest
#4 WA =1 - Other unallocable Expenditure -
™= 5573205 Total -B 5,573,305
#HH [ - 85 657 932 Other Income - C 85,657,932
A GF Y (F-ET) 317,799 084 Profit before Tax (A-B+C) 317,799 084

13

HuA & FnrEn § wyEa frm ufefE @ afe=)
Tl W e Tewef wEl w e uEe
"l w1 wE % dra fafog % dn o wgE
e s #) 7R §7 wr vftefs vd fmmal
F Haw 9 1§ wHAwon T¢ fmm T g

WA AR R T 7 WE, 2003 F IR E 19027299
s H u-1l & S FEifn F99 & wEan
A F AFTEE, A FER 7 AR TIEER
Ao & wAET ® U T 136.5) ®Us F1 X
frafem fiftal wém #0¢ € T 395 9 H
ayarE i (e ad ¥ 1,95 F9g) wfes |
v feu wH & T wmre fod 5 @ @ R
wegfd 3R s gfE @i A defenz @eE @
vt & fAv ura ofer # 1.40 w08 (fres =d
% 1.40 FAg) WfEw F wEm fey W & fem gt
frod § @ @ &

13.

Fixed Assets used in the company’s business
or liabilities contracted have not been
identified to any of the responsible segments,
as the fixed assels and support services are
used interchangeable between segments.
Accordingly no disclosure relating to total

segment Assets and Liabilities has been made.

As per the Revival package of the company
approved by the Govt. of india vide letter No.
19027 /2/99-FCA-II dated 7" May, 2003, the
GOI has extended non- plan funds of ¥136.51
crores towards implementation of the
sanctioned Revival Scheme. The unutilized
funds of ¥ 3.95 crores (previous vear ¥3.95
crores) have been kept in General Reserve for
utilization in future. Further unutilized funds
of ¥ 3.40 crores (Previous Year ¥ 3.40 crores)
received for water supply and other
infrastructure and technology up gradation
of Catalyst plant, has been kept in Capital

Reserve for ulilization in future.
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fadt & s vA fawm e sfqaiE s
el fawp ) wrE afweta (faed @8 e
T AR ) wefene wHEs 9 31.3.2006 7
1 AT e X 4.8 @@ & wEEEA & 99E
FoW: T 77.5) 7@ U4 T 78.57 @@ 31.3.06 B
wiftn 79 W @ T ¥ (31.3.06 W w0 T 77.53
TH T 119.58 W®@)] F [EGH G & ST
fraer fea wmn &1 e fiso 9 o weafl
w1 IEm oW @ ¢ v asgen aiw T
WHY YHEE F1 A Wi W w2 owE g
frgarn o1 181 #) SHUR 7S faery wee A a9
w1 fom e B @ waa wREwiEE woam w6
W T fEm o #

ATERT

frufo = 2006-07 7% s Fulo @ ™
# @ &1 f w2

faufem ad 2008-09 # fom sy fHuio @
1 fea o ) qatafus @= #t amfa 3 &
& w0 Y W Wi g fAuifE &1 T
¥ 7.76 @ faafl &1 3gm | fa= o) st
3 swEa vl aw & wfa A 3101
2011 w1 H WY & (i), misEEE & aad
e Y §) snite W e ge afed 0¥ 7.76
@ W w1 2gam TE 5 R’

HyA 3 AaE fAYm F UE T 1 S99 S 90
Afgdl 4 uuwEd T 91 GEY yEuE §
wuraifaa frm )

14

15.1

15.2

The fixed assets 